Public Document Pack

ENFIELD
Council
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE Contact: Jane Creer
Committee Secretary
Wednesday, 13 May 2015 at 10.00 am Direct : 020-8379-4093
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Tel: 020-8379-1000
Enfield, EN1 3XA Ext: 4093

Fax: 020-8379-4455

Textphone: 020 8379 4419
E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

Councillors : Derek Levy (Chair), Toby Simon and Jim Steven

AGENDA - PART 1
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or
non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda.

3.  THE WINCHMORE, 235 WINCHMORE HILL ROAD, LONDON, N21 1QA
(REPORT NO. 237) (Pages 1 - 52)

Application for a new premises licence.

4.  HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE, 236 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5BL
(REPORT NO. 238) (Pages 53 - 122)

Application to review a premises licence.

5. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 15 APRIL 2015 (Pages 123
- 138)

To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 15
April 2015.

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the
Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).



(There is no part 2 agenda)



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015/16 REPORT NO.

Agenda - Part Item

COMMITTEE : SUBJECT :

Licensing Sub-Committee New premises licence application

13 May 2015

PREMISES :

REPORT OF : The Winchmore, 235 Winchmore Hill Road

Principal Licensing Officer N21

LEGISLATION : WARD :

Licensing Act 2003 Southgate

1. LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION :

1.1 A copy of a location map of the premises is attached as Annex 01.

LICENCE 1 — LN/200501025

1.2 On 8 August 2005 an application by Mr Keith Freeman to convert an existing Justices
On Licence and an existing Public Entertainment Licence to a Premises Licence, which
was not subject to any representations, was granted by officers in accordance with
delegated powers.

1.3 On 21 February 2007 an application by Messrs Phidias and Simis Kouttis to transfer
the Premises Licence, which was not subject to any representations, was granted by
officers in accordance with delegated powers.

1.4 On 17 June 2010 application was made by the Trading Standards Service (which is
the Weights & Measures Responsible Authority for the borough) for a review of the
Premises Licence.

1.5  The review was made on the grounds of the prevention of crime and disorder.

1.6 The authority considered that it is necessary, for the promotion of the licensing
objectives to revoke the licence. This was decision was appealed, but the magistrates
Court dismissed the appeal.

LICENCE 2 - LN/200800171
1.7 On 1 March 2008 an application by Messrs Phidias and Simis Kouttis for a new

Premises Licence (for usable areas of the Ground and First Floors), that was subject to
representations from the Environmental Health Service, from the Trading Standards
Service and from 63 (sixty-three) Interested Parties, was granted-in-part by the
Licensing Sub-Committee.



Page 2

1.8 The licence was reviewed in June 2010 by Trading Standards following a significant
number of complaints relating to loud music, people noise, unlicensed activities and alleged
breach of conditions.

1.9The hours of the licence for some activities were reduced and the conditions amended. An
appeal was launched but was subsequently dismissed by the Magistrates Court.

1.10 On 7™ March 2013, the premises licence was transferred into the name of Star Pubs &
Bars Limited, 3-4 Broadway Park, South Gyle Broadway, Edinburgh, EH12 9JZ.

111 On4" February 2015, a new premises licence application was granted, which amended
the plan of the premises to reflect the change in the layout.

1.12 The current Premises Licence permits:

1.12.1 Hours the premises are open to the public : 09:00 to 23:30 daily.
1.12.2 Supply of alcohol (on supplies) : 10:00 to 23:00 daily.

1.12.3 Live music (indoors): 09:00 to 23:00 daily.

1.12.4 Recorded music: 09:00 to 23:00 daily.

1.12.5 Performance of dance: 09:00 to 23:00 daily.

1.13 A copy of this Premises Licence is attached as Annex 02.

2. THIS APPLICATION :

2.1 This application seeks modifications to conditions, and initially requested an extension
of hours for the sale of alcohol, and opening hours compared to that of premises licence
LN/200800171.

2.2 However, as a result of mediation between the applicant, the Metropolitan Police, the
Licensing Authority and Interested Parties, the application now seeks:

2.2.1 Hours the premises are open to the public : 09:00 to 23:30 daily.
2.2.2 Supply of alcohol (on and off supplies) : 10:00 to 23:00 daily.
2.2.3 Live music (indoors): 09:00 to 23:00 daily.

2.2.4 Recorded music (indoors): 09:00 to 23:00 daily.

2.2.5 Performance of dance (indoors): 09:00 to 23:00 daily.

2.3  The applications were advertised in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing
Act 2003.



24

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3.1

3.3.2

4.1

52

53

5.3.1
5.3.2
5.3.3
5.34

Page 3

Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of each application.
A copy of the application is attached as Annex 03.

RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS :

Metropolitan Police: As times and conditions have been agreed (i.e. the applicant has
agreed to amend the operating schedule attached to the application to include
additional steps to promote the licensing objectives) the representation, against the
application, has been duly withdrawn.

Licensing Authority (including Licensing Enforcement, Environmental Health,
Trading Standards, Planning, Health & Safety and Children’s Services): As times
and conditions have been agreed (i.e. the applicant has agreed to amend the operating
schedule attached to the application to include additional steps to promote the licensing
objectives) the representation, against the application, has been duly withdrawn.

Other Persons : Representations have been made, against the application, by persons
residing at 11 (eleven) separate addresses in the vicinity of the premises. The grounds
of representation include crime & disorder and public nuisance.

Copies of the representations are attached as Annex 04.

PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS :

The conditions arising from this application are attached as Annex 05.

RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES :

The paragraphs below are extracted from either :

Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or

Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport of March 2010
(‘Guid’); or

London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 2010 (‘Pol’).

General Principles :

The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to promoting the
licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)].

The licensing objectives are :

the prevention of crime and disorder;

public safety;

the prevention of public nuisance; &

the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)].



5.4
5.4.1
542

Page 4

In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to :
the Council’s licensing policy statement; &
guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)].

The Sub-Committee may. not have regard to whether or not a proposal is likely to be
permitted in accordance with the law relating to planning or building [Pol s.17.1].

There can be confusion about the difference between the “need” for premises, and the
‘cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives. “Need” concerns the
commercial demand for another pub or restaurant or hotel, and is a matter for the
planning authority and for the market. This is not a matter for the Sub-Committee in
discharging its licensing functions [Guid 13.18].

Cumulative Impact Policy:
The applicant premises/club premises is not located in a Cumulative Impact Policy Area
[Pol s.9.20].

Hours:

The Sub-Committee decides licensed opening hours as part of the implementation of
the licensing policy statement and is best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their area based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities [Guid 10.13].

However, there is no general assumption in favour of lengthening licensing hours and
the four Licensing Objectives should be paramount considerations at all times. Where
there are representations against an application and the Sub-Committee believes that
extending the licensing hours would undermine the Licensing Objectives, they may
reject the application or grant it with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from
those requested. [Pol s.8.3].

Stricter conditions with regard to licensing hours may be required for licensed premises
situated in or immediately adjacent to residential areas to ensure that disturbance to
local residents is avoided. This will particularly apply in circumstances where, having
regard to the location, size and nature of the premises , it is likely that disturbance will
be caused to residents in the vicinity of the premises by concentrations of people
leaving, particularly during normal night-time sleeping periods [Pol s.8.4].

Regulated Entertainment:

With effect from 6" April 2015, changes were made to Schedule 1 of the Licensing Act
2003 which determines whether different types of regulated entertainment are
licensable or not.

In relation to this application:

No licence is required for recorded music if it takes place on a premises which are
authorised by a premises licence for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises, as long as it takes place between 8am and 11pm, and the audience is less
than 500 people.



Page 5

No licence is required for the performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day, on any premises.

No licence is required for a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

No licence is required for performances of dance between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

Decision:

As a matter of practice, the Sub-Committee should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representations and avoid straying into undisputed

areas [Guid 9.36].

In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the Sub-Committee must give appropriate
weight to:

e the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

e the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the

parties;
e the guidance; and
¢ its own statement of licensing policy [Guid 9.37].

Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Sub-Committee must take
such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The
steps are :
¢ to grant the application subject to the mandatory conditions and such conditions
as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives;
e to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which
the application relates; ‘
¢ to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor;
» to reject the application [Act s.18].

Background Papers :

None other than any identified within the
report.

Contact Officer :
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543




ANNEXT |

Page 6

( §
", iy 4
/

The Winchmt;re, 235 Winchmore Hill Road, LONDON, N21 1QA.

Drg.No. 6700BN
Scale 1:1250
Date 1 May 2015

® Crown copyright and d
Ordna ey Li

Council

D

ENFIEL

®

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
CIVIC CENTRE, SILVER STREET,

ENFIELD, EN1 3XE
www.enfield.gov.uk



Page 7

ANNEX Q2

ENFIELD

Licensing Act 2003
PART A —- PREMISES LICENCE

Council

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : | LN/201400961

Part 1 - Premises Details

Postal address of premises :
Premises name : | Willow

Telephone number :

Where the licence is time-limited, the

Address :

dates :

Not provided
235 Winchmore Hill Road LONDON N21 1QA

Not time limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities : :

(1)

(2)

Open to the Public - Whole Premises

Sunday :
Monday :
Tuesday :
Wednesday :
Thursday :
Friday :
Saturday :

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

09:00 - 23:30
09:00 - 23:30
09:00 - 23:30
09:00 - 23:30
09:00 - 23:30
09:00 - 23:30
09:00 - 23:30

Supply of Alcohol - On Supplies

Sunday :
Monday :
Tuesday :
Wednesday :
Thursday :
Friday :
Saturday :

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to
the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

10:00 - 23:00
10:00 - 23:00
10:00 - 23:00

10:00 - 23:00

10:00 - 23:00
10:00 - 23:00
10:00 - 23:00




Page 8

(3) | Live Music - Indoors

Sunday : 09:00 - 23:00
Monday : 09:00 - 23:00
Tuesday : 09:00 - 23:00
Wednesday : 09:00 - 23:00
Thursday : 09:00 - 23:00
Friday : 09:00 - 23:00
Saturday : 09:00 - 23:00

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to

the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

(4) [ Recorded Music - Indoors

Sunday : ' 09:00 - 23:00
Monday : 09:00 - 23:00
Tuesday : 09:00 - 23:00
Wednesday : 09:00 - 23:00
Thursday : 09:00 - 23:00
Friday : 08:00 - 23:00
~ Saturday : 09:00 - 23:00

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to

the start of permitted hours on New Year's Day.

(5) | Performance of Dance - Indoors - GROUND FLOOR ONLY
Sunday : 09:00 - 23:00
Monday : 09:00 - 23:00
Tuesday : 09:00 - 23:00
Wednesday : 09:00 - 23:00
Thursday : 09:00 - 23:00
Friday : 09:00 - 23:00
Saturday : 09:00 - 23:00




Page 9

Part 2

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence :
Name : | Star Pubs & Bars Limited

Telephone number : | 01315 281000
e-mail : | real.estate@starpubs.co.uk

Address : | 3-4 Broadway Park, South Gyle Broadway, Edinburgh,
EH12 9J2

Registered number of holder (where | SC250925
applicable) :

Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence (where
applicable) : - -
Name : | Not applicable

Telephone number :

Address :

Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence
authorises the supply of alcohol) :
Name : | Mr Mark James Walsh

Telephone number : | Not provided

e-mail : | Not provided

Address : | 21 Hobsons Place, Daplyn Street, London, E1 5HH

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply of
alcohol) :
Personal Licence Number : | PERS-LIC/2148

Issuing Authority : | London Borough of Camden

Premises Licence LNIZO14&@was first granted on 4 February 2015.

Signed MJ(C Date : 4th February 2015

---------------------------------

for and on behalf of the
London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XH

Telephone : 020 8379 3578
ENFIELD

Council



Page 10

Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence : (a) Ata
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence; or (b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor
does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

3. Where the licence includes a condition that individuals are required to
carry out any security activity at specified times at the premises each
individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

4, There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children.

5. An alarm system shall be installed operated and maintained at the
premises.
6. Toilets at the premises shall be checked for any sign of drug use every

two hours and a record shall be kept of the times, dates and any issues
discovered. These records shall be kept for 28 days.

7. The car-park shall be locked no later than 30 minutes after closing time
to prevent members of the public parking in the car park after the premises
has closed.

8. Litter bins and wall mounted ashtrays shall be provided outside the
premises.
9. Staff shall actively discourage patrons from congregating around the

outside of the premises, except in the designated smoking area, after 23:00.

10.  No seating shall be permitted in the external area to the front of the
premises.

11. At least six prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed
throughout the premises, including all toilets warning customers that drug
use will not be tolerated.

12.  The premises shall operate the Local Authority or similar proof of age
scheme and display the relevant material. Only passport, photographic
driving licences and ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age Standards
Scheme) may be accepted.

13.  Children aged under 15 years shall only be permitted on the ground
floor of the premises up until 19:00 and if they are accompanied by an adult.



Page 11

14.  Children aged 15 years and over shall only be permitted on the ground
floor of the premises up until 21:00 and if they are accompanied by an aduit.

15.  Children under 18 shall be permitted in the first floor restaurant. |

16.  All training relating to the sale of alcohol shall be documented and
records kept at the premises. These records shall be made available to the
Police and/or Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one
year.

17.  An external area shall be designated for the use of smokers from 23:00
until closing time. There shall be no more than 10 persons using this
designated area during these times. The designated area shall be adequately
supervised by staff to control the number and behaviour of patrons so as to
not cause noise nuisance. Notices shall be displayed in the area specifying
the terms of its use and asking patrons to respect the needs of local residents
and to use the area quietly. No alcoholic drinks or glass containers shall be
taken into the designated smoking area during these times. A plan showing
the location of this area shall be provided to Licensing Team within 7 days.

18. A member of staff (which may include a door supervisor) shall monitor
the car park at regular intervals during the 30 minutes prior to the premises
closing time on Friday and Saturday nights to ensure customers leave the car
park quietly.

19.  All external doors and windows to be kept closed but not locked during
regulated entertainment except for access and egress.

20. A minimum of two registered door supervisors shall be employed on
the ground floor of the premises on Friday and Saturday nights from 21:00
until 30 minutes after closing or until the last customers has left.

21. A tamper proof noise limiting device shall be installed and permanently
maintained in good working order within the premises. The device shall
automatically control the volume of all amplified live and recorded music at
the venue at all times in line with the agreed Noise Management Plan.

22. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public
exits from the premises and in the car park requesting customers to respect
the needs of local residents and leave the premises and area quietly.

23.  Allvisiting performers providing live or recorded music at the premises
shall be briefed prior to events taking place with regard to the premises
licence conditions relating to noise and the use of the sound limiter. They
must sign a booking form / protocol confirming they have been informed of
and understand the terms of use. These booking forms / protocols must be
kept for six months and must be made available to an authorised officer of the
Council or police, upon request. If regular performers are employed this can
be done on a monthly basis with times and dates being specified on the
'booking form / protocol.

24.  No speakers shall be positioned anywhere on the ground floor that has
a glass roof.



Page 12

25. No speakers shall be positioned in the outside areas.

26. A Dispersal Policy, to be provided to the local police and local
authority, shall be implemented forthwith and an up-to-date copy shall be
provided to the local authority.

27. A Noise Management Plan detailing the maximum sound levels
permitted at the premises and measures taken to achieve that (as defined in
the acoustic report dated 7-9-10 authored by Mr Gosling) to be implemented
by 7 October 2010. A copy to be provided to the local authority within 7 days.
Any amendment to be notified to the Local Authority:

28. Adigital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying
with the following criteria: (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance
and exit doors both inside and outside, including the car park and all floor
areas open to the public; (2) Cameras on the entrances must capture full
frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all people entering the premises
I.e. capable of identification; (3) Cameras overlookmg floor areas should be
wide angled to give an overview of the premises; (4) Cameras must capture a
minimum of 16 frames per second; (5) Be capable of visually confirming the
nature of the crime committed; (6) Provide a linked record of the date, time,
and place of any image; (7) Provide good quality images - colour during
opening times; (8) Operate under existing light levels within and outside the
premises; (9) Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked
cabinet; (10) Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality;
(11) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture
and retention; (12) Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that
CCTV is in operation; (13) Digital images must be kept for 31 days; (14) Police
or authorised local authority employees will have access to images at any
reasonable time; (15) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g.
CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data they
require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no image
quality is lost when making the copy. If this format is non-standard (i.e.
manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay
software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on
a standard computer. Copies must be made available to Police or authorised
local authority employees on request. |

29. The duties of staff will include the supervision of persons leaving and
entering the premises to ensure that this is achieved without causing
nuisance to local residents.

30. The beer garden shall not be used after 23:00 except for access /
egress to the premises and by those using the designated smoking area.

31. A written or electronic record of refused sales shall be kept on the
premises and completed when necessary. This record shall be made available
to Police and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at
least one year from the date of the last entry.



Page 13

32. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every
three months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of

the premises licence.

33.  All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions
of the premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the
premises. These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local
Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.

34. The management shall make subjective assessments of noise levels
outside at the perimeter of the premises approximately half hourly from 20:00
until close, whilst regulated entertainment is provided to ensure that noise
from the premises does not cause a disturbance to local residents. Records
shall be kept of the times, dates and any issues discovered. These records
shall be kept for one year. Records must be made available to an authorised
officer of the Council or police, upon request. Where monitoring by staff
identifies that noise from the premises is audible at the perimeter, measures
shall be taken to reduce this i.e. turning volume down.

35.  All refuse and bottles shall be disposed of in bins quietly so as not to
disturb neighbours or local residents. There shall be no disposal of glass
bottles outside between 22:00 and 08:00.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Not applicable



PR S N S S ——
¢ Al mareameraee

— e fu¢ Bdaicdia acsivnaga KEY TO LAYOUT

@ 533 v 705 w27 nme o
. 99 FO(S Firw Doy wih ol chsing cwven
;OERG Frevmtinggazng
P G Wste® veoe m
—_---—_...._!.I AU Fre o mrpt
I FOILS Foe ooy e e onatiegn
I [0 mommnaies Snergorcy st oir
JE] mimwesDeacmes Emogerey ot o
- € Srgucy RadEmg o marames) e
R
+ I
@ e aamibreh gies it
Y

Foe s curcar

o BL Waar Extuuher:
X Foan Evmgucier
L3 DyPyms Extrpictn
° e Banr

P\ T

A s Spie
EEMMMIH‘M

Annex 4 - Plans

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR LICENSING PLAN sca- e PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR LIGENSING PLAN souc 1 1m
AREA = 3460 AREA = 12402 : A
3724FT* o dh LOCATION PLAN scuce v

the jsdesign parmerstip
FITIET) ¢ SN WS e Srgn

:STAR PUBS AND BARS LTD

rm'nis. ‘;zn;; a
e o Rt divag



MK‘\ Z 140G % Pagy 15 ANNEX T3 4:*:3 =
* oc \D
ey ' R

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act

2003 Sbays3sh.
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional
sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/WE Star Pubs & Bars Limited (/nsert name(s) of applicant)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and l/we are making this
application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12
of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
The Winchmore (formerly Willow)
235 Winchmore Hill

Post Town | London Postcode N21 1QA

Telephone number at premises

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £49,500

Part 2 - Applicant Details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as
Please tick ves

a) an individual or individuals | please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual please complete section (B)
' i, as a limited company X please complete section (B)
ii. as a partnership d please complete section (B)
iii. as an unincorporated association or ] please complete section (B)

iv. other )
(for example a statutory corporation O please complete section (B)
c) a recognised club O please complete section (B)
d) a charity O please complete section (B)

e) the proprietor of an educational




Page 16

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

, Other Title (for
M O Ms [ Mss (J Ms [OJ example, Rev)
Surname First names
| am 18 years old or over J Please tick yes

Current postal address if different
from premises address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address (optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where
appropriate please give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or
other joint venture {other than a body corporate), please give the name and
address of each party concerned.

Name
Star Pubs & Bars Limited

3-4 Broadway Park South Gyle Broadway
Edinburgh

Registered number (where applicable)
SC250925

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association
etc.)
Company

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)




Page 17

Part 3 Operating Schedule

Day Month Year

When do you want the premises licence to start? eloTa 270l I5
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, Day Month Year
when do you want it to end? L Ll LpLfLfey

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note1)

The premises operates as a public house with external drinking area.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the

premises at any one time, please state the number

expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the

Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

9) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box )
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Please tick yes

O 0 XRXXOOOO




E

Page 18

Live music

Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Will the performance of live
music take place indoors or Indoors | (]

outdoors or both — please tick

6) (please read guidance note 2) Outdoors | []

Day | Start Finish. Both O

Mon 09:00 23:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance
note 3)

Tue 09:00 23:00

Wed 09:00 23:00 State any seasonal variations for the performance of
live music (please read guidance note 4)

Thur | 09:00 23:00

Fri 09:00 24:00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the performance of live music at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please

Sat 05:00 23:00 list (please read guidance note 5)
New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New
Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's

Sun | 09:00 23:.00 | Day.




F

Page 19

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded Indoors =
Sandarsdays anc timings | Tiie ake e ndeors of
- -

(6;;lease SRClaiSSncsioote (please read guidance note 2) Outdoors | [] -

Day Start Finish Both O

Mon 09:00 23:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance
note 3)

Tue 09:00 23:00

Wed 09:00 23:00 State any seasonal variations for the playing of
recorded music (please read guidance note 4)

Thur | 09:00 23:00

Fri 09:00 24:00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the playing of recorded music at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please

Sat 09:00 23:00 | list (please read guidance note 5)
New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New
Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's

Sun [ 09:00 23:.00 | Day.




G

Page 20

Performances of dance

Standard days and timings

Will the performance of dance Ind K
take place indoors or outdoors e =

or both — please tick (please read Outdoor

lease read guid

g)’ guidance note guidance note 2) o O

Day Start Finish Both [

Mon 09:00 23:00 Please give further details here (please read guidance
note 3)

Tue 09:00 23:00

Wed 09:00 23:00 State any seasonal variations for the performance of
dance (please read guidance note 4)

Thur 09:00 23.00

Fri 09:00 24:00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the performance of dance at different
times to those listed in the column on the left, please

Sat 09:00 23:00 list (please read guidance note 5)
New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New
Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's

Sun | 09:00 23:.00 | Day.




Page 21

Late night refreshment Will the provision of late Indoors E
Standard days and timings ":9ht Tegeshment take
lease read guid ol 3G

g; o A0eee outdoors or both — Outdoors OJ
please tick (please read

Day | Start Finish | 9uidance note 2) Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance
note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late
night refreshment (please read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri  {23:00 00:00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the provision of late night refreshment at
different times, to those listed in the column on the

Sat left, please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sun

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New
Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's
Day.




Page 22

J

Supply of alcohol Will the supply of On the ]

Standard days and timings __::::sh:r:'b;;?‘r — premises |

- . p (

g))lease read guidance note tick box) (pleass read ;)rf; ;‘l:izes O]
guidance note 7)

Day | Start Finish Both X

Mon | 09:00 23:00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of aicohol
(please read guidance note 4)

Tue | 09:00 23.00

Wed | 09:00 23:00

Thur | 09:00 23:00 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the
premises for the supply of alcohol at different times to
those listed in the column on the left, please list

Fri 09:00 24:00 (please read guidance note 5)
New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New
Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's

Sat | 09:00 23:00 Day.

Sun | 09:00 23.00

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisor

Name
Andrew Cochrane

Address
Yew Tree House
Leafgreen Lane
Littleover
Derby DE23 2T2

Personal Licence number (if known)

PA105651522

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

Derby City Council




Page 23

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment
or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in
respect of children (please read guidance note 8)

NONE

L

Hours premises are open
to the public

Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance

note 4)

Day | Start Finish

Mon | 08:00 00:30

Tue | 08:00 00:30

Wed | 08:00 00:30
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises
to be open to the public at different times from those

Thur | 08:00 00:30 listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 5)

. New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New

Fri 08:00 00:30 Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year's
Day.

Sat | 08:00 00:30

Sun | 08:00 00:30




Page 24

M - Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) (please read guidance note 9)

Please see attached proposed conditions.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

c) Public safety

d) The prevention of public nuisance

e) The protection of children from harm




Page 25

Please tick yes

. I have made or enclosed payment of the fee <
I have enclosed the plan of the premises

o I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable X

o I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual | wish to be
premises supervisor, if applicable

. | understand that | must now advertise my application X

. | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application
will be rejected | =4

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See
quidance note 11). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what

capacity.

A AN
Signature
Date 1,6 NS
Capacity ._gatcv%'(r/

For joint applications signature of 2" applicant or 2" applicant's solicitor or other
authorised agent. (please read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the
applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 13)

Andrew Cochrane
Flint Bishop LLP
St. Michael's Court
St. Michael's Lane
Derby

DE1 3HQ

Telephone number (if any) 01332 226142

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address
(optional) ,
andrew.cochrane@flintbishop.co.uk




Page 26

Conditions

1.

There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.

An alarm system shall be installed operated and maintained at the premises.
Toilets at the premises shall be periodically checked for any sign of drugs use.

The car-park shall be locked no later than 30 minutes after closing time to prevent
members of the public parking in the car park after the premises has closed.

Litter bins and wall mounted ashtrays shall be provided outside the premises.

Staff shall actively discourage patrons from congregating around the outside of the
premises, except in the designated smoking area, after 23:00.

At least six prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed throughout the
premises, including all toilets warning customers that drug use will not be tolerated.

The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme and display the relevant material.
Only passport, photographic driving licences and ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of
Age Standards Scheme) may be accepted.

Children under 18 years shall only be permitted on the premises up until 21:00 and if
they are accompanied by an aduit.

10. All training relating to the sale of alcohol shall be documented and records kept at the:

11.

12.

13.

14.

premises. These records 'shall be made available to the Police and/or Local
Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.

An external area shall be designated for the use of smokers from 23:00 until closing
time. There shall be no more than 10 persons using this designated area during
these times. The designated area shall be adequately supervised by staff to control
the number and behaviour of patrons so as to not cause noise nuisance. Notices
shali be displayed in the area specifying the terms of its use and asking patrons to
respect the needs of local residents and to use the area quietly. No alcoholic drinks
or glass containers shall be taken into the designated smoking area during these
times. A plan showing the location of this area shall be provided to Licensing Team
within 7 days. '

A member of staff (which may include a door supervisor) shall monitor the car park at
regular intervals during the 30 minutes prior to the premises closing time on Friday
and Saturday nights to ensure customers leave the car park quietly.

All external doors and windows to be kept closed but not locked during regulated
entertainment except for access and egress.

Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public exits from the
premises and in the car park requesting customers to respect the needs of local
residents and leave the premises and area quietly.

15. All visiting performers providing live or recorded music at the premises shall be

briefed prior to events taking place with regard to the premises licence conditions
relating to noise and the use of the sound limiter. They must sign a booking form /




Page 27

protacol confirming they have been informed of and understand the terms of use.
These booking forms / protocols must be kept for six months and must be made
available to an authorised officer of the Council or police, upon request. If regular
performers are employed this can be done on a monthly basis with times and dates
being specified on the booking form / protocol.

16. No speakers shall be positioned anywhere on the ground floor that has a glass roof.
17. No speakers shall be positioned in the outside areas.

18. A Dispersal Policy, to be provided to the local police and local authority, shall be
implemented forthwith and an up-to-date copy shall be provided to the local authority.

19. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the following
criteria: (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both
inside and outside, including the car park and all floor areas open to the public; (2)
Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders
of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification; (3) Cameras
overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an overview of the premises;
(4) Cameras must capture a minimum of 16 frames per second; (5) Be capable of
visually confirming the nature of the crime committed; (6) Provide a linked record of
the date, time, and place of any image; (7) Provide good quality images - colour
during opening times; (8) Operate under existing light levels within and outside the
premises; (9) Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet:
(10) Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality; (11) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (12) Have
signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation; (13)
Digital images must be kept for 31 days; (14) Police or authorised local authority
employees will have access to images at any reasonable time; (15) The equipment
must have a suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police can make
an evidential copy of the data they require. This data should be in the native file
format, to ensure that no image quality is lost when making the copy, if this format is
non-standard (i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the
replay software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on
a.standard computer. Copies must be made available to Police or authorised focal
authority employees on request.

20. The duties of staff will include the supervision of persons leaving and entering the
premises to ensure that this is achieved without causing nuisance to local residents.

21. The beer garden shall not be used after 23:00 except for access / egress to the
premises and by those using the designated smoking area.

22 A written or electronic record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police and/or the
Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year from the date of
the last entry.

23. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every twelve months)
relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the premises licence.

24 All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the
premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These
records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon request
and shall be kept for at least one year. '




Page 28

25. The management shall make subjective assessments of noise levels outside at the
perimeter of the premises approximately half hourly from 20:00 until close, whilst
regulated entertainment is provided to ensure that noise from the premises does not
cause a disturbance to local residents. Records shall be kept of the times, dates and
any issues discovered. These records shall be kept for one year. Records must be
made available to an authorised officer of the Council or police, upon request. Where
monitoring by staff identifies that noise from the premises is audible at the perimeter,
measures shall be taken to reduce this i.e. turning volume down.

26. All refuse and bottles shall be disposed of in bins quietly so as not to disturb
neighbours or local residents. There shall be no disposal of glass bottles outside

between 22:00 and 08:00.




. e e s L e RV
. R e - o .
A M ol kel r ey e ey T e B e
. e — T A A D 120G 7 e
L T =) =, fa e S O AT TAT, 0 8 A T diae
tald n by 3

.

A Xt s

B B.I rm

s Coe Gasice DR NI NIC N ~
IS KEY TO LAYOUT
@ FD30S Fire Door with sell clozing divice
@@  FDSIS Fize Docr with sl ciosing device:
FRG  Fue resisling giazing

WP Coor fied vath wiston pangd
...... ST FOHE  Fuwcorheed sl tin
FDKLS  Fire door keep ecked shut sgr
[E1 ituminated Emargency Sxt sgr
| L Iuiminated Owectana Emergency Sxt! N
{ Emergency sghrithng (non. TRANEBINGG) reCessud

& area I ce covered
Smoke delecior .

Hea! detecior (rame of rsa)

Fae aarm break giass pou

@
e
Aéi‘ ed to Ee covered by
©
[

Fae dam souncer

TN 9 Wansr Exnguisher

EA* Foam Extngusnes
|

L Doy Powaer Eimgushes

ANE O Foe Blanke:
N = 1 N Wet Cheracal

‘ Exising Soeaker Y

QD

\’% Euiseag Manhok: 1¢ maie we «Q

S D

| N

- s (o]

] +

bl ]
- —

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR LICENSING PLAN scace 1100 PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR LICENSING PLAN scit 110
AREA = 346M? AREA = 134M2
3724FT? _ 1442FT2

LOCATION PLAN scai 1 1250

the jsdesign partnership
AFCNItECES SWYRYOrs arg Mmanor 08s:

STAR PUBS AND BARS LTD

=
WINCHMORE ARMS (WILLOW)
WINCHMORL HIL. RCAD

| WINCHMCRE L.
LONCON
N21 10A

e
| LICENSING PLan

t i —
- | Ry e

pe— P
|7s |8 2080 (s (28 |inm
1 J (£



Page 30

From: Nikki Rennie [mailto:nikki.rennie@flintbishop.co.uk]
Sent: 24 April 2015 11:12
To: Ellie Green

Subject: 5th EMAIL TO AGENT: 214096207 The Winchmore, 235 Winchmore Hill Road, LONDON, N21
1QA.

Dear Ellie

Thank you for your email. | apologise for the confusion caused regarding the email. | have received
email confirmation this morning that our client is agreeable to the contents of your email of this
morning and the conditions attached.

Should you require anything further or any further clarification please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards

Nikki

Nikki Rennie

PA

DDI: 01332 226 151

Fax: 0870 191 8678
nikki.rennie @flintbishop.co.uk
www.flintbishop.co.uk

Flint Bishop LLP

St. Michael's Court

St. Michael's Lane



Page 31

Derby

DE1 3HQ

DX: 729320 DERBY 24
Tel: 01332 340 211 ext: 400

Fax: 01332 207 601

This e-mail is sent for and on behalf of Flint Bishop LLP

This e-mail and its attachments are solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). If they have come
to you in error you must take no action based on them, nor must you copy or communicate them to
anyone. Please notify us immediately and delete this communication. Please note Flint Bishop LLP
does not accept any responsibility for viruses and it is your responsibility to scan or otherwise check
this email and any attachments.

Flint Bishop LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales, Registered number
0C317931. Registered office: St Michael’s Court, St Michael’s Lane, Derby DE1 3HQ. Authorised and
regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority. A full list of members is available at the registered
office. Any reference to a partner of Flint Bishop LLP means a member of Flint Bishop LLP or an
employee or consultant of Flint Bishop LLP with equivalent standing and qualifications.

Please note that Flint Bishop LLP monitors e-mails sent or received. Further communication will
signify your consent to this.

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.



Page 32

From: Ellie Green [mailto:Ellie.Green@Enfield.gov.uk]
Sent: 24 April 2015 10:34
To: Karen Cochrane; Nikki Rennie

Subject: 5th EMAIL TO AGENT: 214096207 The Winchmore, 235 Winchmore Hill Road, LONDON, N21
1QA.

Dear Karen and Nikki,

Thank you for your email this morning. | can confirm | did receive your email on 21st April. |
understood that the final written confirmation formally amending the application with reduced
hours would be sent following the residents meeting.

The meeting took place last night, and I believe it went well, mainly because your clients confirmed
to the residents that they have formally reduced their hours.

For absolute clarification, please could you now confirm that your client agrees to amend the
application to reduce the hours sought for licensable activities in accordance with the hours set out

below?

Recommended Times — daily
Live Music 09:00 - 23:00
Recorded Music 09:00 - 23:00

Performance of dance 09:00 - 23:00

LNR Nil
Supply of Alcohol 10:00 - 23:00 (both on and off supplies)
Opening Hours 09:00 - 23:30

Furthermore, please can you also confirm that all the conditions (as attached) are agreed.



Page 33

May I remind you that should your client agree to the above times and conditions, the
representations from the Metropolitan Police Service and the Licensing Authority shall be
withdrawn.

I will write to all the residents to ask whether they will withdraw their representation in light of this
agreement, following your confirmation in writing.

I look forward to hearing from you as soon as possible.

Kind regards,

Ellie

Ellie Green

Principal Licensing Officer
Licensing Team

London Borough of Enfield

020 8379 8543 (Tel)
020 8379 8506 (Fax)
ellie.green@Enfield.Gov.uk

Protect The Environment — Think Before You Print



A NNEXEE

B TR Mol ANTD
. _ _'_O,Qog _‘8"6?& 7

B thg—w Lhae vead o
A-\Q)uia Ol u&&ﬂa& ?@\? "Q(V‘f“-*% k.
B Hhey weld Lo &
e Pans SRl v Moo

X oam & 3-se  Ledh 6. G

Ko evo Mc&a—A |
Ala ok b ande o) Ho

(VRN Q-S?Ta"m&;;m J\\:\QMM

. <l YA |



Page 35

LONDGN 50 OF ENFIELD

— CECENER

T ENVIRGNMENT &

| STREET SCENE

LR i —

————



Page 36

5 /\:&m
e

el

+

Winchmore Hill

EWIIDNESDBAS

Visit our website at www.eniigid-iodas

G

BITTER BLOW

By Lee Husson

A WINCHMORE HILL pub
has lost a fight to keep ifs
late licence after magisirates
upheld the council’s decision
to scale back its opening times.

From now on, Willow, in Winch-
more Hill Road, will be forced to
close its doors at 11pm on Friday
and Saturday nights after residents
complained about loud music from
the bar and noise from customers
leaving, including shouting, scream-
ing, and car horns.

The case was originally brought
before Enfield Council in a review
of Willow’s licence in September
last year after residents complained
about revellers leaving the bar and
restaurant at its 12.30am closing
time. The review set new conditions
for licensees Phidias and Simis
Kouttis to move the closing time
back to 11pm over the weekend. -

They appealed against the deci-
sion, but their case was dismissed at
Enfield Magistrates’ Court.

Agreeing with the council’s
licensing committee’s decision,
judge Tim Daber said: “The local
authority has demonstrated itself to

g

have taken a proportionate response.
It may be that limiting the hours will
not abate the problems completely,
but it will bring dispersal problems
forward to a time before many resi-
dents bave retired to bed.
“Residents have for a long time
been used to having a public house
in the area, but not a late-night

Noisy neighbour: Complaints were made about patrons of Wiliow, in Winchmore Hill Road

entertainment venue. I am unable to
say that the licensing authority was
wrong. Indeed, while- I am. not
required to.go this far, it seems to
me on the evidence T have heard that
it was right.”

The judge also awarded the coun-
cil £21,000 in costs.

Chris Bond, Enfield Council’s

cabinet member for environment,
said: “This decision is a victory for
the council’s right to defend resi-
dents’ quality of life.

_ “Pubs,.clubs and restaurants must
recognise their neighbours’ right to
sleep and, if they won't, we will step
in and protect the community from
unnecessary noise and disturbance.”




Aorsa
QUL

s,

LR85 58 e IR HT RN L

4yl
SR8E

‘ D)
’f;' I b &

:

N e . Y L

Pub music

noise banto

curb binge
drinking

THE Government’s latest proposal to
combat Britain's binge-drinking epi-
demic is to turn down the volume of
music in pubs and bars,

Landlords could be forced to outlaw
all entertainment louder than 70 deci-

| bels - roughly the same as a haivdryer

- to curb alcohol-fuelled violence and
anti-social behaviour.

A Labour taskforce has been per-
suaded by research which showed that
loud music in pubs made customers buy
more alcohol and drink it faster.

At present, there is no set noise level
for licensed premises, the only stipula-
tion being that if pubs want to host live
bands, they must make a formal appli-

. cation to the local council.

But researchers found that deafening
music speeds up drinking patterns by

R R R A S NS R A

Louder sounds lead to
heavier consumption

drowning out conversation and arous
ing the brain. e

When sound levels were louder; the
average number of drinks ordered by
customer's rose from 2.6 to 3.4. The time
taken to drink a small beer also fell from
14 to 11 minutes, according to the study
by France's University of South Brittany.

But pubs claim a limit on noise would
put an end to televised sports events
and comedy nights and leave jukeboxes
barely audible.

Mark Hastings, of the British Beer &
Pub Association, said: ‘There is abso-
lutely no evidence to suggest a link
between music and binge-dri g.

“This move is akin to a sledgehammeyr
cracking a nut - the Government already
has the power to put whatever conditions
it chooses on any individual licence, That
would target the problem venues rather
than banning music, dancing, comedy
and entertainment for everyone.’

The news follows a warning to a

By Tom Harper

Commons select committee last week
by Feargal Sharkey, frontman of Eight-
ies band The Underiones and now chief
executive of British Music Rights. He
said stricter licensing laws are making
it increasingly difficult for smaller
venues to obtain live music licences.

The taskforce also proposes meetings
twice a gear between licensees and the
police. But the industry estimates this
would run to 400,000 meetings a yvear
and take up 33,000 police working days,

The measures could either be
enshrined in new legislation or used to
amend the 2003 Licensing Act.

The annual cost of hospital treatment

- for alcohol-related problems has now

reached £2,7billion and more than 40 per
cent of all crime is linked to drink.

Since the extension of drinking hours,
the number of youngsters treated for
alcohol abuse has soared by 40 per cent.

Shadow Home Secretary Dominic
Grieve said: “This is a desperate attempt
— the Government should concentrate
on getting the basics right. Putting
police on the street and enforcing the
laws already in place would do more to
combat alcohol-fuelled disorder.’

The document makes no mention of
minimum pricing for drink, despite Gov-
ernment-backed research showing that
cheap supermarket deals are linked to
binge-drinking. Last year, The Mail on
Sunday revealéd that some stores were
selling beer more cheaply than water.

Other moves being considered are a
ban on pub promotions, such as free
drinks for women, happy hours and the
sale of cocktails with suggestive names
such as Sex On The Beach.

The draft code also proposes ciga-
rette-style health warnings about the
dangers of alcohol to be displayed in
shops, bars and restaurants,

The Home Office said: “This decument
is a draft and should not be taken as an
indication of Government policy. Minis-
ters ha:rlf yet to take any final decisions.’

.)r”)(zD



Page 38 - @

%

ASHWOOD LODGE MANAGEMENT CO.LTD.
9 ASHWOOD LODGE
1 HOUNDSDEN ROAD
N21 IND

April 2 2015

The Licensing Team
London Borough of Enfield
B Block Nth. POBox 57
Civic Centre Silver St.
Enfield EN1 3XH

Dear Sirs

Re: The Winchmore (Willow) 235 Winchmore Hill Rd. N21 10A

Further to my telephone conversation yesterday with Charlotte Palmer I am writing to
you on behalf of the residents of Ashwood Lodge to lodge our objection to the
proposed extended licensing hours to 00.00 midnight on Fridays to include music to
that hour.

I would refer you to the previous problems we experienced with the landlords of the
Willow which were the subject of a hearing on 8%/9®September 2011 in Enfield
Magistrates Court at which time District Judge Daber upheld the council were correct
to reduce the hours to 11.pm with the last person having to leave the premises by
11.30pm.

May I suggest you contact Catriona McFarlane in Legal Services for a copy of Judge
Daber's full ruling regarding licensed premises hours in residential areas.

Yours faithfdlly,

W.Clayman (Chairman)

Undersigned by A Brinton(Flat 1) Mr&Mrs V.Kumar(Flat 2) MrsS Helman(Flat 3)
Mrs B.Baxter(Flat 4 )MrM. Levy(Flat6)Mr&Mrs K. Stanton(Flat7) K. Kemal(Flat8)
MrsL.F.Clayman(Flat9)



Page 39

Gill Aylott
From: Angie Allin on behalf of Licensing

Sent: Wednesday, April 08, 2015 10:12 AM

To: Gill Aylott .

Subject: FW: The Willow Pub [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

From: Prabha Patel [mailto:prabha_tb@hotmail.com]
Sent: 07 April 2015 19:08

To: Licensing

Subject: The Willow Pub

We strongly object for the extending licence to open till midnight, as we live within few yards from it. (Flat 21,
Chesterfield Lodge, 9 Church Hill, N21 1LW).There will be lot of disruption for parking and noise.

There are many elderly residents in the building.

So please consider this matter seriously.

From, Dr. & Mrs. T.B.Patel

Sent from my iP

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED



Page 40

Attention: London Borough of Enfield Council Licensing Department

PO Box 57,

Civic Centre B Block North
Silver Street,

Enfield

EN1 3XH

7th April 2015
Dear Licensing Department

Re: Application for a new premises license — The Willow, Winchmore Hill Road, London, N21
1QA

| am writing to register my objection to the application for a premises license by Star Pubs & Bars Ltd for
The Willow, Winchmore Hill Road, London, N21 1QA. The basis for this opposition is that granting a
license for these premises will not promote the licensing objectives, particularly the Prevention of Public
Nuisance.

We currently reside at 1 Eversley Park Road, London, N21 1D, which is the property directly next door
to The Willow, and share a wall with the establishment. We have had serious issues in the past with
noise levels emanating from the premises. This was not a case of low level background noise where we
could hear the bass or certain beats, this is where we could recognise all the songs including lyrics long
in to the night. We had to have your Environmental Health Officers around on several occasions in order
to try and solve the issue as I'm sure your records will show.

At times it was an extremely difficult situation living at home when The Willow was playing music, but
now we have a 19 month old son and if the levels of noise were to return to previous levels it would
become almost unbearable. Our Son would not have the luxury we did of staying up until the music
ended, trying to use ear plugs, or even leaving the House for the night. At similar levels it would be
impossible for him to sleep and would seriously affect his quality of life.

These are old buildings and not designed to contain modern levels of sound and vibration. There either
needs to be a significant decrease in the music levels allowed, or the building needs to be equipped with
suitable sound proofing to prevent noise escaping.

This excessive noise coupled with anti social behaviour that has been highlighted in previous licence
reviews, including the case of late licence that was revoked, | would urge the Licensing Authority to

refuse the application. ’ g;
F &
Yours faithfully,

—

\\\
e F= —

Jonathan Screeney & Ania Martin




Page 41

Angie Allin

From: andys drv <andysdrv@googlemail.com> : \\‘
Sent: 13 April 2015 00:04 1w
To: Licensing

Subject: Willow/Winchmore Pub - Late Night Licence Application

From: Mr Andreas Demetriou
18 Houndsden Road
Winchmore Hill

London N21 1LT

Hello. I am writing in regards to the Willow which I understand is soon to reopen as Winchmore Pub. The
pub is located at the end of Winchmore Hill Road, which is only 100 meters walk from my home. It is my
understanding that the tenants have applied for a late night licence for Friday night and I would like to
express my concerns about this tor your consideration.

My main worry is excessive noise at night from the pub and its visitors. This has been cause for concern for
many years as the pub is located in a dense residential area. In the past I have also seen bottles, glasses and
litter being left on resident's front walls by late night pub goers. This type of littering is very hazardous for
the children in our neighbourhood, and seems to be more of an issue late at night when people seem to feel
more free to litter under the cover of darkness.

I feel on balance it is perhaps better not to grant a late night licence in view of the pub's location. Many
thanks for your time.

Andreas Demetriou.



Page 42

Angie Allin e
From: NASREDDINE MANSOURI <atlasmansouri@gmail.com> >

Sent: 12 April 2015 16:46 I_(j 20
To: Licensing

Subject: Opposition to late night licensing (the Willow in Winchomore Hill Road)

To whom it may concern,
RE: Late night licensing for the Willow in Winchmore Hill Road

We would like to let you know that we are totally opposed to idea of late licence for the Willow pub in
Winchmore Hill Road.

We had a previous bad experience with the same pub namely noise from the customers staying late, parking
illegally on pavement and blocking the road, using the horns, throwing rubbish on our cars or front gardens
even knocking on resident's doors for the fun of it and the list is long...

We hope that our voices as residents are taken into consideration.
Thank you for your attention.
KInd regards,

Nasreddine Mansouri
Tomoko Mansouri

32 Eversley Park Road
Winchmore Hill

N21 1JU
atlasmansouri@gmail.com




Page 43 G -

Angie Allin

From: Helen Panayiotou <helenpanay4791@yahoo.co.uk>

Sent: 11 April 2015 18:55

To: Licensing

Subject: Objection against late licence for Willow Pub in Winchmore hill
Dear Sir/Madam,

| have recently been made aware that the new tenants of the Willow Pub in Winchmore Hill are
applying for a late license for Fridays and Saturdays.

| am therefore objecting to this as this is a quite residential area and this is the main reason |
recently moved here. | am aware that that this was a problem a few years back with the levels of

noise pollution and night disturbances with drunkards leaving the pub so late. This is the reason
why my sister moved away.

| therefore ask that this licence be closely looked at as many local residents are feeling very
unhappy about this.

Kind regards
Helen Panayiotou

Tel.no: 07789419762

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone




Page 44 CIP:%E@)

Gill Aylott
From: Helen Panayiotou <helenpanay4791@yahoo.co.uk>

Sent: Saturday, April 11, 2015 7:11 PM

To: helenpanay4791@yahoo.co.uk; Licensing

Subject: RE: Objection against late licence for Willow Pub in Winchmore hill

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

Dear Sir/Madam,

| have recently been made aware that the new tenants of the Willow Pub in Winchmore Hill are
applying for a late license for Fridays and Saturdays.

| am therefore objecting to this as this is a quite residential area and this is the main reason |
recently moved here. | live just across the road so this would directly affect me. My address is:
250 Winchmore hill road, London N21 1QR. | am aware that that this was a problem a few years
back with the levels of noise pollution and night disturbances with drunkards leaving the pub so
late. This is the reason why my sister moved away.

| therefore ask that this licence be closely looked at as many local residents are feeling very
unhappy about this.

Kind regards
Helen Panayiotou

Tel.no: 07789419762

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone




Page 45 s S

Angie Allin

From: Rachel Chrisostomou <rachel25chris@gmail.com>
Sent: 13 April 2015 09:54

To: Licensing

Subject: Objecting to a late licence

Hi my name is Rachel Chrisostomou | live at 254a Winchmore Hill Road London N21 1QR.

I am writing this email to say that | live directly opposite the the willow pub and | am very concerned that the pub is
re-opening and they would like to apply for a late licence for a Friday and Saturday. | object to this, as | had a lot of
trouble from when the pub was open last. There were fights. | even had people urinating in my front garden. | would
find empty glasses sometimes smashed on my wall at the front of my driveway. | even saw people running round he
roundabout naked!!This to me is not accepted. This is a very nice area it's not a high street where people can hang
out until all hours. My parents also live next door to me.

Mr and Mrs Chrisostomou 254 Winchmore Hill Road. They are elderly and retired. They do not need all this stress
they want to enjoy peaceful nights and not have to worry about about drunken people hanging out in front of there
driveway until early hours. It was a circus last time there was a late licence. Please stop this from happening.

If you have any further queries with any of the above. Please do not hesitate to call/email me.

Thank you.

Kind regards

Rachel Chrisostomou

07944805280

Sent from my iPhone



Page 46

Gill Aylott

From: areti woods <areti.woods@yahoo.co.uk>
Sent: Monday, April 13, 2015 4:09 PM

To: Licensing

Subject: Re: The Winchmore/Willow pub

I have just had a visit from another two of my neighbours without email and who aren't able to visit
the council offices today in person as they are disabled - they have also asked me to email you on
their behalf.

Kind regards

Areti Woods

Mr Jeremy Rabin, 2 Chesterfirld Lodge, Church Hill, N21"
Mrs Betty Tindall, 3 Chesterfirld Lodge, Church Hill, N21 _

We both each wish to lodge our very strong objections to the application for the late license till
midnight on Fridays for the Willow/Winchmore Pub. The noise and disruption which will result from
customers leaving at such a late time is not acceptable in this residential area. The customers also
regularly park in our parking spaces which are private to Chesterfield Lodge and then the noise,
disturbance and litter made by these people leaving is a public nuisance. The music from the pub at
this time can be heard a long way off.

Yours faithfully

Mr Jeremy Rabin
and
Mrs Betty Tindall

From: areti woods <areti.woods@yahoo.co.uk>

To: "licensing@enfield.gov.uk" <licensing@enfield.gov.uk>
Sent: Monday, 13 April 2015, 15:38

Subject: The Winchmore/Willow pub

I am sending this on behalf of my neighbours without email access. Please can you confirm receipt of
this objection.

Regards

Areti Woods

Celia and Leslie Glodek, No 20 Chesterfirld Lodge, Church Hill, N21

I am aghast at the application for the extended license at the Winchmore pub and we are both
dreading the noise, the dirt and broken bottles as well as the cars parked in our private drive which
would result from the extended hours. The parked cars in Chesterfield Lodge not only cause a nuisance
by taking up our parking spaces, but we are then disturbed by the noise of people leaving at such a
late hour, banging car doors, drunken laughter, and shouting as well as the debris that is left behind
by these customers, as well as the vomit we find on the walls. The extended hours will disturb our
quiet, lovely environment.

We are both very much against the application and would like to lodge an objection to the extended
hours.

Yours faithfully
Celia and Leslie Glodek



Page 47

T r——-~\\l
(i/[}j )
Rose Mcmurray . Z’/

e

From: Licensing
Subject: FW: Willow / Winchmore Pub N21 - Objection to application for late-night licence

From: Anne Brown [mailto:anniebee33@aol.com]

Sent: 13 April 2015 23:57

To: Licensing

Subject: Willow / Winchmore Pub N21 - Objection to application for late-night licence

Dear Sirs

My family and | have lived at 6 Church Hill, N21 for over 27 years, opposite the pub known most
recently as the Willow. | understand that it is to re-open as the Winchmore and am disturbed to
learn that the owners have applied for a licence to open late on Fridays and possibly Saturdays.

| wish to formally object to any extension of standard opening hours.

Over the years there have been a number of instances of nuisance and anti-social behaviour
originating from the premises and affecting ourselves and our neighbours. A year or so before the
Willow closed, | remonstrated with a man urinating in the mlddle of the street around midnight or
later (closing time then) and was verbally abused.

Car parking and noise - especially in summer - have also been a problem.

| cannot remember a time when the pub was operated as a 'local' and as an amenity for residents
of the area - it seems to be an exclusively commercial concern for patrons from outside the
immediate area.

Given that the area is exclusively residential apart from these premises, | submit that an extension
beyond 11pm is inappropriate.

Yours faithfully

Anne Brown
6 Church Hill
London N21 1JB



Page 48 ANNEXOY .

The Winchmore - WK/ 214096207

Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence : (a) At a time
when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence; or (b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not
hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Where the licence includes a condition that individuals are required to carry
out any security activity at specified times at the premises each individual
must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

4.

10.

11.

12.

There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children. ,

An alarm system shall be installed operated and maintained at the premises.

The car-park shall be locked no later than 30 minutes after closing time to
prevent members of the public parking in the car park after the premises has
closed.

Litter bins and wall mounted ashtrays shall be provided outside the premises.

Staff shall actively discourage patrons from congregating around the outside
of the premises, except in the designated smoking area, after 23:00.

At least six prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed throughout
the premises, including all toilets warning customers that drug use will not be
tolerated

The premises shall operate the Local Authority or similar proof of age scheme
and display the relevant material. Only passport, photographic driving
licences and ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age Standards Scheme) may
be accepted.

Children under 18 years over shall only be permitted on the premises up until
21:00 and if they are accompanied by an adult.

A member of staff (which may include a door supervisor) shall monitor the
car park at regular intervals during the 30 minutes prior to the premises
closing time on Friday and Saturday nights to ensure customers leave the car
park quietly.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 49

All external doors and windows to be kept closed but not locked during
regulated entertainment except for access and egress.

Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public exits from
the premises and in the car park requesting customers to respect the needs
of local residents and leave the premises and area quietly.

All visiting performers providing live or recorded music at the premises shall
be briefed prior to events taking place with regard to the premises licence
conditions relating to noise and the use of the sound limiter. They must sign
a booking form / protocol confirming they have been informed of and
understand the terms of use. These booking forms / protocols must be kept
for six months and must be made available to an authorised officer of the
Council or police, upon request. If regular performers are employed this can
be done on a monthly basis with times and dates being specified on the
booking form / protocol.

No speakers shall be positioned anywhere on the ground floor that has a
glass roof.

No speakers shall be positioned in the outside areas.

A Dispersal Policy, to be provided to the local police and local authority, shall
be implemented forthwith and an up-to-date copy shall be provided to the
local authority.

A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the
following criteria: (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit
doors both inside and outside, including the car park and all floor areas open
to the public; (2) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of
the heads and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of
identification; (3) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to
give an overview of the premises; (4) Cameras must capture a minimum of 16
frames per second; (5) Be capable of visually confirming the nature of the
crime committed; (6) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of
any image; (7) Provide good quality images - colour during opening times; (8)
Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises; (9) Have
the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet; (10) Have a
monitor to review images and recorded picture quality; (11) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (12)
Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in
operation; (13) Digital images must be kept for 31 days; (14) Police or
authorised local authority employees will have access to images at any
reasonable time; (15) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g.
CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data they
require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no image
quality is lost when making the copy. If this format is non-standard (i.e.
manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay
software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on
a standard computer. Copies must be made available to Police or authorised
local authority employees on request.



20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 50

The duties of staff will include the supervision of persons leaving and
entering the premises to ensure that this is achieved without causing
huisance to local residents.

A written or electronic record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises
and completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police
and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one
year from the date of the last entry.

All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every three
months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the
premises licence.

All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the
premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises.
These records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority
upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.

The management shall make subjective assessments of noise levels outside
at the perimeter of the premises approximately half hourly from 20:00 until
close, whilst regulated entertainment is provided to ensure that noise from
the premises does not cause a disturbance to local residents. Records shall
be kept of the times, dates and any issues discovered. These records shall be
kept for one year. Records must be made available to an authorised officer of
the Council or police, upon request. Where monitoring by staff identifies that
noise from the premises is audible at the perimeter, measures shall be taken
to reduce this i.e. turning volume down.

All refuse and bottles shall be disposed of in bins quietly so as not to disturb
neighbours or local residents. There shall be no disposal of glass bottles
outside between 22:00 and 08:00.

Toilets at the premises shall be checked for any sign of drug use every two
hours from 19:00 until closing time. A record shall be kept of the times, dates
and any issues discovered. These records shall be kept for 28 days.

An external area shall be designated for the use of smokers from 22:00 until
closing time. There shall be no more than 10 persons using this designated
area during these times. The designated area shall be adequately supervised
by staff to control the number and behaviour of patrons so as to not cause
noise nuisance. Notices shall be displayed in the area specifying the terms of
its use and asking patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to use
the area quietly. No alcoholic drinks or glass containers shall be taken into
the designated smoking area during these times. A plan showing the location
of this area shall be provided to Licensing Team within 7 days.

The seating in the external area to the front of the premises shall not be used
after 19:00.

The external area at the rear of the premises shall not be used after 22:00
except for the designated smoking area.



Page 51

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda ltem 4

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2015/16 REPORT NO.

Agenda - Part Item
COMMITTEE : SUBJECT :
Licensing Sub-Committee Review Application
13 May 2015
PREMISES :
REPORT OF : Hertford Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road,
Principal Licensing Officer ENFIELD, EN3 5BL.
LEGISLATION : WARD :
Licensing Act 2003 Enfield Highway
1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION:

1.1 A new premises licence (LN/200600789) was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as
both the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS) on 22" February 2007.

1.2 A new premises licence application was made in June 2008 as the premises had
extended the licensable area. The premises licence (LN/200800470) was issued
again to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as both the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) on 13™" August'2008.

1.3 The premises licence (LN/200800470) was revoked on 13" July 2011 following
a review application (relating to the sale of non-duty paid alcohol) submitted by
Trading Standards. ,

1.4 Premises licence (LN/200600789) was surrendered at the review hearing on the
same date as the plan was no longer accurate.

1.5 A new premises licence (LN/201100396) was issued on 6" September 2011
naming the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS) as Mr Suleyman Erdogan.

1.6 The current Premises Licence permits:

Hours the premises are open-to the public-Sunday-to-Saturday from 08:00
to 01:00

Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): Sunday to Saturday from 08:00 to 01:00
1.7 A copy of a location map of the premises is attached as Annex 01.

1.8 A copy of the current premises licence (LN/201100396) is attached as Annex 02.




2

21

2.2

2.2.1
222

223

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6
2.7

3

3.1

3.2

Page 54

THIS APPLICATION :

On 10" March 2015 application was made by the Licensing Authority for
the review of the Premises Licence (LN/201100396).

The review application relates to the prevention of crime and disorder
licensing objective and is made because:

On 12" March 2014 non-duty paid alcohol was found on the premises.

On 24t February 2015 non-duty paid alcohol and tobacco was found on the
premises.

The Premises Licence Holder of the former premises licence, Mr Sefer
Govtepe is a business partner of the current Premises Licence Holder, Mr
Suleyman Erdogan.

The authority considers that it is now appropriate, for the promotion of the
licensing objectives, to revoke the Premises Licence.

The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements
of the Licensing Act 2003.

Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the
application.

A copy of the review application is attached as Annex 03.

A copy of the additional information is attached as Annex 04.

RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS:

Metropolitan Police: Representation is made, on the grounds of the prevention
of crime and disorder, in support of the review application. The authority agrees
that it is appropriate, for the promotion of the licensing objectives, to revoke the
Premises Licence.

A copy of the representation is attached as Annex 05.

4 PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS:

4.1

4.2

The Licensing Authority has proposed a number of conditions to form part of
the premises licence, if the outcome of the review does not result in
revocation. These conditions have not been agreed by the Premises
Licence Holder.

A copy of the proposed conditions is attached in Annex 086.




Page 55

5 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES:

5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either :
5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act); or

5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of
March 2015 (‘Guid’); o

5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January
2015 (‘Pol’).

General Principles :

5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)].

5.3 The licensing objectives are :
5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder;
5.3.2 public safety;
5.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; &

5.3.4 the protection of children fram harm [Act s.4(2)].

5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to :
5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; &

5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act 5.4(3)].

Review :

5.5 In reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into
account, the complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information
[Pol s.10.3].

5.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly
connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods.
The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or
otherwise of any issue. The Sub-Committee’s role is to ensure the promotion of
the crime prevention objective [Guid s.11.24].

5.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed
premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of
the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and aIcohoI [Guid
s.11.27].

5.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-
Committee determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined,
it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should

——be-seriousty-considered-{Guid-s-11:28F:



Page 56

Decision :

5.9 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-
Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotlon of
the licensing objectives. The steps are :

5.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence;

5.9.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
5.9.3 toremove the designated' premises supervisor

5.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

5.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52].

5.10 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Sub-Committee should so far as
possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at
these causes and should generally be directed at those causes and should always be
no more than an appropriate and proportionate response [Guid s.11.20].

Background Papers :
None other than any identified within the
report.

Contact Officer :
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543




236 Hertford Road, ENFIELD, EN3 5BL.

CIVIC CENTRE, SILVER STREET,
ENFIELD, EN1 3XE

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD @
_mmr..anﬁa]d.gm

ENFIELD"&
Council

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015
Ordnance Survey Licence no. 100019820

Drg.No. 6700BJ
Scale 1:1250

L




Page 58 ANINEX O 2

ENFIELD

Council

Licensing Act 2003

PART A -~ PREMISES LICENCE

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority

Premises Licence Number : [ LN/201100396 |

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises :
Premises name : | Hertford Food Centre

Telephone number : | 020 8804 9554

Address : | 236 Hertford Road Enfield EN3 5BL

Where the licence is time-limited, the | Not time limited
dates :

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those
activities :

(1) | Open to the Public - Whole Premises

Sunday : 08:00 - 01:00
Monday : 08:00 - 01:00
Tuesday : 08:00 - 01:00
Wednesday : 08:00 - 01:00
Thursday : 08:00 - 01:00
Friday : 08:00 - 01:00
Saturday : 08:00 - 01:00

(2) | Supply of Alcohol - Off Supplies

Sunday : 08:00 - 01:00
Monday : 08:00 - 01:00
Tuesday : 08:00 - 01:00
Wednesday : 08:00 - 01:00
Thursday : . 08:00 - 01:00
Friday : 08:00 - 01:00

Saturday : 08:00 - 01:00




Page 59

Part 2

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence :
Name : | Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Telephone number : | Not provided

e-mail : | Not provided

Address : | 256A Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5BL

Registered number of holder (where | Not applicable
applicable) :

Name and (registered) address of second holder of premlses licence (where
applicable) :

 Name : | Not applicable
Telephone number :

Address :

Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence
authorises the supply of alcohol) :
Name : | Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Telephone number : | Not provided

e-mail : | Not provided

Address : | 256A Hertford Road, Enfield, EN3 5BL

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply of
alcohol) :

Personal Licence Number : | LN/201100192

Issuing Authority : | London Borough of Enfield

Premises Licence LN/201100396-was first granted on 6 September 2011.

Signed {/.....0w 7. T D Date : 6th September 2011

for and on behalf of the
London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

ENFIELD

Council




Page 60

Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence : (a) At a
time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence; or (b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor
does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every subply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Scheduie

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children.

4, Suitable steps shall be provided at the premises to allow the rear fire
exit to be used safely in an emergency.

5. The premises must operate the Local Authority or similar proof of age
scheme and display the relevant material. Only passport, photographic
driving licences or ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age Standards Scheme)
shall be accepted.

6. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at ail public
exits from the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local
residents and leave the premises and area quietly. These notices shall be
positioned at eye level and in a location where they can be read by those
leaving the premises.

7. Children under the age of 14 shall not be permitted on the premises
after 21:00 unless accompanied by an adult.

8. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising
customers that the premises is in a '‘Drinking Control Area' and that alcohol
should not be consumed in the street. These notices shall be positioned at
eye level and in a location where they can be read by those leaving the
premises.

9. Deliveries will not be made to the premises between the hours of 22:00
and 06:00.

10. Deliveries shall not cause a noise nuisance to local residents.

11.  Stock control shall be introduced, so that the licensee can identify
when/where alcohol goods were purchased.

12.  If any spirits bought by the Company have UK Duty Stamps that do not
fluoresce under ultra-violet light, or are otherwise suspicious, the licensee
shall identify the supplier to Trading Standards and HMRC as soon as
possible.




Page 61

13. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying
with the following criteria : (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance
and exit doors both inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and floor areas;
(2) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and
shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification; (3)
Cameras viewing till areas must capture frames not less then 50% of screen;
(4) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an
overview of the premises; (5) Cameras must capture a minimum of 16 frames
per second; {6) Be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime
committed; (7) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of any
image; (8) Provide good quality images - colour during opening times; (9)
Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises; (10) Have
the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet; (11) Have a
monitor to review images and recorded picture quality; (12) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (13)
Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in
operation; (14) Digital images must be kept for 31 days; (15) Police will have
access to images at any reasonable time; (16) The equipment must have a
suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an
evidential copy of the data they require. This data should be in the native file
format, to ensure that no image quality is lost when making the copy. If this
format is non-standard (i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer
should supply the replay software to ensure that the video on the CD can be
replayed by the police on a standard computer. Copies must be made
available to Police or authorised local authority employees on request.

14.  If the premises remain open after 01:00, a Raid Control system must be
installed and procedures carried out : (1) A time delay safe is fitted and
secured under the counter to ensure cash is minimised in the till; (2) A
separate covert real time camera is fitted above the front door (Raid Cam); (3)
A smoke note system is installed; (4) All staff must be fully trained as to its
use and a signed written record kept of all training carried out and signed and
dated by those receiving it; (5) Signs must be displayed at the entrance
advertising Raid Control is fitted in the premises.

15.  Atleast two members of staff shall be present on the shop-floor of the
premises between 22:00 and 01:00.

16. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police
and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year
from the date of the last entry.

17.  All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every
three months) relating to the sale of alcohol, and the times and conditions of

the premises licence.

18.  All training relating to the sale of alcohol and times and conditions of
the licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These
records shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon
request and shall be kept for at least one year.




Page 62

19. The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the
purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers
unless they are from a bona fide company.

20.  The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods
bought are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been
brought into the UK though legal channels. These records shall be made
available to the Police, Local Authority and/or HMRC upon request and shall
be kept for at least one year. Receipts shall show the following details: (1)
Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, if applicable; (3)
Seller's VAT details, if applicable; (4) Seller's vehicle details, if applicable.
Copies of these documents shall be retained on the premises and made
available to police or authorised officers of the council on request within five
working days of the request.

21.  An ultra violet light will be used at the store to check the authenticity of
all stock which bears a customs stamp as soon as practical after they have
been purchased.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Not applicable




Page 63

Annex 4 - Plans

LEGEND

FRIDGES
VEGETABLES & FRUITS

LIQUOR SHELVES

AMBIT OF LICENSED
PREMISES

SAFETY LIGHTS
SMOKE DETECTOR
ceTv

2 kg CARBON DIOXIDE
FIRE EXTINGQUISHER

P boami JBE

6 kg POWDER FIRE
Ll b EXTINGUISHER

236 HERTFORD ROAD
HERTFORD ENFIELD, LONDON
FOOD CENTRE  EN3SBL

My

PROPOSED
GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE : 1100@A3 DATE : 20/05/08
REF. NO : 0200508

ACT 2003
90 Greon Lanes LONDON
N16 9EJ

FIRE X1 = :
= < £ Tel : 020 7241 3636(4line)
: www act2003 com




Page 64 ANINC > T3

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all

cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

| Charlotte Palmer Licensing Enforcement Officer

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Hertford Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road

Post town Post code (if known)

Enfield EN3 5BL

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
known)

Mr Suleyman Erdogan

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known

LN/201100396

Part 2 - Applicant details
| am

Please tick yes
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)
a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises ]
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

[]

[]

d) a bod_y representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the ]
premises

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

L]

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A)
below)

T.
T




Page 65

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick

Mr [ Mrs [ Miss [ ] Ms [ Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
| am 18 years old or over L]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)




Page 66

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Authority
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 57

Civic Centre

Silver Street

EN1 3XH

Telephone number: 020 8379 3965

E-mail address: charlotte.palmeL@enfield.ggv.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes
1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 1)

Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on the
grounds that the premises have been found to be selling non duty paid alcahol and
tobacco.

This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder, licensing
objective. The review application is to revoke the premises licence in its
entirety.

Background Information:

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

Complaint and Visit History of Premises

A new premises licence (LN/200600789) was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as both
the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) on
22/2/2007.

A further new premises licence application was made in June 2008 as the premises
had extended the licensable area. The premises licence (LN/200800470) was issued
again to Mr Sefer Govtepe, as both the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) on 13/08/2008.

LN/200800470 was revoked on 13/07/11 following a review application (relating to
the sale of non-duty paid alcohol) being submitted by Trading Standards — See
Appendix 1 and 2

LN/200600789 was surrendered at the review hearing as it could not be used as the
plan was no longer accurate.




Page 67

A new premises licence application was submitted on 14/07/11 naming the Premises
Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) as Mr Suleyman
Erdogan. There did not appear to be any evidence to link Mr Erdogan with the
premises under the old licence and a new licence was granted. Trading Standards
did however make representation in relation to times and conditions — see Appendix
3.

Many of the same issues that lead to the previous revocation have reoccurred at this
premises and it has become apparent that the previous Premises Licence Holder /
DPS is still the owner of this premises and has admitted buying non-duty paid
products to sell in this premises.

02/12/11 - 22:20 - 22:45 — Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement Officers (JF/CLB)
visited the premises to carry out a full licence inspection with PLH / DPS. Several
areas of non-compliance.

Condition 12/21 - New UV light needed as one on the premises was not working
when tested.

Condition 16 - Refusals book not being used

C17/18 - Training book on premises not being used, reminded to carry out refresher
training with all staff.

Whilst being on the premises officers witnessed an attempted age related sale by
three females, which was refused. When they left the officers reminded the PLH to
place the occurrence in the refusals book. As he did not appear to know what to do
the officers showed him what to do.

13/12/112 - 09:20 - 09:30 (JF) Revisit inspection with PLH / DPS to check
outstanding conditions. All Compliant

16/05/12 - Trading Standards responded to an allegation that the premises were
selling grey import of Dove Essential Nutrients that can cause burns. Premises were
non-compliant and 20 Dove cream cleansers were seized and signed over for
destruction.

26/11/13 - Trading Standards received a complaint alleging that the premises was
selling Lithuanian cigarette, alcohol and meat.

12/03/14 - Trading Standards & HMRC joint visit to check for counterfeit/duty diverted
products.

Seized counterfeit back labels on 73 bottles:
5 x Smirnoff Vodka 100cl

5 x Smirnoff Vodka 70cl

10 x Famous Grouse 70cl

15 x High Commissioner 100cl

5 x High Commissioner 70cl

10 x Bells 70cl

3 x Barcardi 100cl

14 x E&J Brandy 70cl

1 x Wyborowa 700ml

1 x Wodka Zoladkowa 700ml

1 x Gorzka 700ml|

1 X Sobieski 700m|

1 x De-lux Zoladkowa 700ml

1 x Gorzka 700ml




Page 68

22/05/14 — Trading Standards received police intelligence that the premises were
selling counterfeit alcohol and cigarettes and under aged sales.

23/05/14 — 13:05 — 13:30 - Full licence inspection carried out.

Condition 4: Fire exit not clear & bins obstructing exit

Condition 17: Refresher training not carried out every 3 months. Last recorded
refresher training was carried out in May 2013.

Condition 21: Ultra violet light not available on premises.

Officers also advised on poster Condition 6 - leave quietly poster to be moved to
where those leaving the premises can read it. '

23/05/14 — Trading Standards age related sales test purchase carried out. Male
volunteer aged 16 years and 66 days attempted to purchase alcohol. The sale was
refused.

29/05/14 - Trading Standards received a further allegation that the owner called
Sefer (surname not known by informant) of the Hertford Food Store, 236 Hertford
Road, Enfield EN35BL sells imported tobacco and alcohol. The informant stated that
the cigarettes and alcohol are from Poland and that the owner also sells to underage
persons.

02/06/14 - Multi-agency operation involved Trading Standards, HMRC Living Wage
and Immigration Enforcement. The premises were compliant on matters of interest
to HMRC Living Wage and Immigration Enforcement. Trading Standards checked
licence conditions. Condition 21 — ultra violet light was not available. The premises
were provided with an Inspection Report and given 7 days to comply.

24/06/14 - 22.13 - 22.23 Out of Hours Licencing Enforcement Officers visited the’
premises to check outstanding conditions. Condition 21 ultra violet light equipment
not available at time of inspection.

01/07/14 — Trading Standards received a complaint alleging that the premises was
selling duty diverted and counterfeit products.

22/07/14 - Trading Standards age related sales test purchase carried out. Female
volunteer aged 15 years 169 days Cigarettes and alcohol — no sale.

15/8/14 - 20:40 — Licensing Enforcement Officer (NJ) visited the premises and
carried out a licence inspection. Unable to check Condition 13: CCTV present but
not accessible. Condition 17 and 18 - Staff training records not available for
inspection and therefore no proof of training taking place. Condition 20 - No sales
receipts for alcohol. Several bottles checked using a UV device, no counterfeit
found. Two packets of non-duty paid cigarettes seized.

15/08/14 — Non duty paid tobacco test purchase attempt - no sale made.

09/09/14 — A warning letter was sent to the premises licence holder in relation to the
alcohol found at the premises in March 2014. The letter stated:

‘Having carefully considered the facts of the case, Trading Standards have decided
not to take any formal action against you on this occasion.

However, you should take this letter as a warning as to your future conduct. Should
similar matters be brought to our attention again, it is unlikely thatwe shall adopt
such a lenient approach’.

un
m
-
-ty
>




Page 69

24/02/15 — 10:52 - 11:35 - A Licensing Enforcement Officer (CPX), two HM Revenue
and Customs Officers and an Officer and dog from Operation Wagtail visited the
premises to check for any counterfeit or non-duty paid tobacco or alcohol. Three
non-duty paid bottles of vodka were seized along with 93 packets of Marlboro. Gold
cigarettes (20 cigarettes per packet), 1 Marlboro Red cigarettes (20 cigarette per
packet) and 7 x 50g Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco. All of the tobacco was
found concealed in a set of drawers. The drawers appeared to contain bags of
plastic bags but the dog indicated that there was something there and once a
wooden panel (a false bottom to the drawers) was pushed back the tobacco was
found. There were two drawers like this. See Appendix 4 — Photos When
questioned under caution a male called Sefer Govtepe claimed to own the premises.
He said that his cousin was the licence holder. Sefer Govtepe admitted that he had
bought the tobacco and had originally borough 20 boxes of cigarettes, each
containing 10 packets of 20 (he had therefore already sold more than half of what he
had bought). He also admitted that he had built and installed the drawers containing
the cigarettes. Before leaving the Licensing Enforcement Officer advised him that a
licence review would be submitted and that this matter could lead to the licence being
revoked. The officer noted that a Think 21 poster was on display, posters advising
customers not to buy alcohol for children on display, Part B on display, No ID no sale
poster on display, alcohol zone poster on display, leave quietly poster on display,
CCTV signage on display.

27102/15 - A letter was hand delivered to the premises inviting the premises licence
holder in for a meeting.

03/03/15 — Licensing Enforcement Officer Charlotte Palmer and Police Licensing
Officer Martyn Fisher held a meeting with the Premises Licence Holder — Mr
Suleyman Erdogan. Also in attendance was Mr Sefer Govtepe and Ms Umit Yigit
who they had brought along as a translator. During the meeting Mr Govtepe
confirmed that he and Mr Erdogan are business partners and cousins and that the
company they run is called Hertford Food Centre Limited. Mr Govetepe confirmed
that he is the Director and that Mr Erdogan use to be the director of the company. Mr
Govtepe claimed that the 3 bottles of vodka were given to him but that he didn’t want
them so put them on sale. He was advised that further visits would probably be
made to the shop and to ensure that there was nothing else on sale which shouldn’t
be. He stated that it had all been taken. He went on to say that it had been a
genuine mistake but also commented that it was because ‘everything was so
expensive’. Charlotte Palmer stated that they obviously knew it was wrong otherwise
it would not have been hidden in secret drawers. The officers explained that a review
application would be submitted and that all of the paperwork would be addressed to
Mr Erdogan as the premises licence holder. He was strongly advised to get
independent legal advice.

04/03/15 — Company information was checked on the Companies House website.
This confirms that Mr Sefer Govtepe is the current Didre tor and Mr Suleyman
Erdogan was the director until 20/05/14. See Appendix 5.

Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP):

These premises are located in the Enfield Highway Cumulative Impact Policy Area.

The CIP states the core hours that should not be exceeded for each type of premises
in particular locations. These are:

Sale/supply of alcohol (off supplies only): Monday — Sunday 08:00 — 24:00

The current licensed hours for this premises are:

@




Page 70

08:00 - 01:00 Mon — Sun

Additional Information:

DCMS Guidance (11.26) states that there are certain criminal activities that may
arise in connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers
should be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sale of smuggled
tobacco and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products).

DCMS guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsibility
authorities will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and
crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime
prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance -
should be seriously considered.

Conclusion:

Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on the
grounds that the premises have been found to be selling alcohol with counterfeit back
labels in March 2014, non-duty paid cigarettes in August 2014 and non-duty paid
alcohol and tobacco in February 2015. A previous licence has already been revoked
in 2011 for similar offences. The previous licence holder and the current licence
holder are business partners so the previous history of the premises is relevant to
this case. Despite already having lost one licence the same illegal activity has
continued to take place at this premises resulting in the Licensing Authority having no
confidence in those running the premises.

The Licensing Authority therefore recommends that this licence be revoked.
Suggested additional condition:

If the Licensing Committee does not deem it necessary to revoke the licence in its
entirety | would recommend the hours be reduced in line with the Cumulative Impact
Policy, the DPS be removed from the licence, the licence be suspended for or 3
months and the following conditions be attached to the premises licence:

* A Personal Licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the
sale of alcohol throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.

e All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be
stored in a container clearly marked ‘Tobacco Stock’. This container
shall be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.

e Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind
the sales counter in order to make a sale.

The Licensing Authority reserve the right to add any additional information to
support this review application.

Suspension of Licence: N

Revocation of Licence: Y

-
P

4
m




Page 71

Recommended period of suspension (max 3 months):

The conditions attached to the premises licence already include most of the
conditions that the Licensing Authority would seek for an off licence premises.

There is a significant history of illegal activity at this premises.

Having regard to all this information, and taking into account the DCMS guidance
that, this leaves little option other than for the Licensing Authority to seek total
revocation of the premises licence.

The Secretary of State believes that the sale of smuggled alcohol should be treated
particularly seriously and that where licence reviews are submitted and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined
revocation of the licence, even in the first instance should be seriously considered.

Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before Yesv'[]

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year

1(‘)_”7’ May 2011

If you have made representations before relating to these premises please state
what they were and when you made them.

Eleanor Green, Trading Standards, review application submitted and licence revoked
July 2011. The prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance
and the protection of children from harm. The review was submitted on the ground
that the premises had been found selling non duty paid alcohol. Premises licence
holder and DPS was Sefer Govtepe at that time.

New premises licence application submitted by Suleyman Erdogan in July 2011 and
Trading Standards representation made by Eleanor Green recommended
strengthening conditions and reduced hours. Granted.

Please tick yes

* | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible ]
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
premises certificate, as appropriate

* | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements O]
my application will be rejected

IT 1S AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

BL
IR
P
=
>

@




Page 72

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

SO

Signature:

Date: 10" March 2015

Capacity: Licensing Enforcement Officer

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems
which are included in the grounds for review if available.

3. The application form must be signed.

4. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf
provided that they have actual authority to do so.

5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.




Page 73 ANINIC YC/A/_

ENFIELD
Council

www.enfield.gov.uk

LICENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Name and address of premises: Hertford Food Centre
236 Hertford Road
Enfield
EN3 5BL

Type of Application: Review of Premises Licence

This document includes additional information, not previously mentioned in the
review application. It also includes all Officer Observations and Inspections
carried out since the review was submitted on 10" March 2015:

20/05/14 — A letter was sent to the premises setting out the new updated Mandatory
Licence Conditions. At the end of the list of conditions was advice from Trading
Standards stating:

‘You must buy tobacco, alcohol and any product that belongs to a registered brand
(trade mark) holder from a reputable supplier.

Furthermore, these products must be evidenced by receipts and available for
inspection to Trading Standards, HMRC and the Police upon request.

| must remind you that Trading Standards operate a zero tolerance policy that includes
prosecution, revocation of the licence and other enforcement disposals against any
individual or any premises found to have counterfeit alcohol, tobacco or any other
product belonging to a registered brand holder on the premise and associated
buildings/vehicles or on your person’. See Appendix 6.

08/04/15 — The Premises Licence Holder / DPS attended a meeting at his request with
his agent, Barrister and council officers. They provided officers with travel documents
claiming that the PLH/DPS was out of the country when the officers visited the
premises and seized good in February 2015 however the documents showed that he
flew to Istanbul on 11™ January and returned to London on 22™ February (6 week trip).
The visit by officers was made on 24™ February 2015 and the PLH / DPS was seen at
the premises during the visit. The Licensing Act 2003 does not require the DPS to be
at the premises every day but the guidance does suggest they normally have day to
day responsibility for running the premises (section 4.18). At no point during this or any
other conversation with officers has the PLH/DPS claimed that he was unaware that
non-duty paid goods were being sold at the premises.

24/4/15 - 22:55 hours — Licensing Enforcement Officers (EVG/CLB) visited the
premises and carried out a full licence inspection with Mr Suleyman Erdogan
(Designated Premises Supervisor) Areas of noncompliance. C13 (14) CCTV does not
hold records for 31 days. Staff advised officers that the system is new and claimed it
did not yet hold 31 days of footage. Staff were unable to supply invoices for the last
months alcohol purchases. The officers requested copies of these be provided.
Inspection report completed. Given 14 days to comply.




Page 74

A copy of the warning letter sent on 09/09/14 which is referred to in the review
application is attached as Appendix 7.

Duly Authorised: Charlotte Paimer, Licensing Enforcement Officer
Contact: charlotte.palmer@enfield.gov.uk

O

Signed: Date: 27/04/2015




Page 75

Apperdix (

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in black capitals. In all
cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use

additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.
I _Ellie Green, Principal Trading Standards Officer - Licensing Enforcement

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Hertford Food Centre

| Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
'| description

236 Hertford Road

Post town Post code (if known)
Enfield EN3 5BL.

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
known)

Mr Sefer Govtepe, 43 Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield,-EN3 4QJ.

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known
LN/200800470

Part 2 - Applicant details
I am

Please tick yes
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)
a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises O
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) aperson involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

premises

L]
J
d) abody representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the O
2) aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) 2

Ol

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (pleaée complete (A)
below)

FLIC1A

5y

.




Page 76

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick
M [ Mrs [ Miss [ Ms [ Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick yes
| am 18 years old or over O

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town ‘ Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number l

E-mail address
(optional) r

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optionat)

2 F LIC 1A




Page 77

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Ellie Green

Enfield Trading Standards (Weights and Measures)
London Borough of Enfield

PO Box 57

Civic Centre

Silver Street

EN1 3XH

Telephone number: 020 8379 8543

E-mail address: ellie.green@enfield.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety

3) the prevention of public nuisance X
4) the protection of children from harm X

Please state the ground(s) for review: (please read guidance note 1)

Enfield Trading Standards is seeking a review of the premises licence on the grounds
that the premises has been found to be selling non duty paid alcohol. The premises
also has a history of offences breaching the Licensing Act 2003, namely breaching

conditions.

This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing
objective, but also supports the protection of children from harm and prevention of
public nuisance licensing objectives. '

The review application is to revoke the premises licence.

Background Information:

A new ‘premises licence (LN/200600789) was issued to Mr Sefer Govtepe, 43
Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4QJ as both the Premises Licence Holder
(PLH) and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) on 22/2/2007.

A further new premises licence application was made in June 2008 as the premises
had extended the licensable area. The premises licence (LN/200800470) was issued
again to Mr Sefer Govtepe, 43 Merlin House, 2 Napier Road, Enfield, EN3 4QJ as
both the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)
on 13/08/2008.

To date LN/200600789 has not been surrendered although it cannot be used as the
plan is no longer accurate. Trading Standards are also seeking to revoke this licence
in a separate application.

3 F LIC 1A




Page 78

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

History of Premises

The history of the premises will include information under the LN/200600789 as it is
exactly the same person named on the licence, and therefore relevant to this

application.

9/4/08 — Complaint aileging noise disturbance from deliveries being made late at
night until early morning to the premises’ storage at number 232 Hertford Road. The
Enviro Crime Officer advised Mr Sefer Govtepe with assistance from an employee
Besime Koker, as Mr Govtepe was unabie to fully understand English. Mr

Govtepe denied these allegations.

9/6/08 — Complaint received alleging shop sells out of date food and alcohol to
underage children. Food officers visited and identified food displayed for sale beyond
the use by dates. Advice was given.

11/8/08 — LBE became aware that the Fire Service had served a Fire Improvement
Notice on the premises.

7/11/08 — Food officers checked for counterfeit vodka, none found.

12/12/08 - Licensing Enforcement officers visited premises to carry out a full
compliance inspection, and spoke to Mr Govtepe. The following conditions were
found to be in breach: 6 — Insufficient raid contro!l and training, 10 - Leave quietly sign
not next to exit; 11 - No refusals book; 13 - Training records need to be kept for all
staff, 15 - Drinking control signs required. 21 days were given to bring breaches into
compliance, and an inspection report with advice was issued.

02/01/09 - Revisit carried out to check outstanding licence, however Mr Govtepe was
not on the premises and staff requested a re-visit when manager there as they do not
know where records are kept. Officers noted out of date meat in the fridge and had it

removed from sale. .

10/01/09 — Revisit carried out to check outstanding licence conditions. The following
conditions were found to be in breach: 6- raid control not in place but officers told it
was on order; 13 - no training records; 11 - refusals book on site but not been used.

19/01/09 — Complaint received that the premises stays open all night, and that they
also use 232 Hertford Road as storage. The storage doors are continuously opened
and closed using shutters, which are very noisy and caused the complainant to lose

sleep. '

05/02/09 — As part of the Trading Standards Tobacco project, cigarettes were tested
for authenticity — no problems found. Checked outstanding licensing conditions, the
following were found to be in breach: 13 - training records unavailable; 11 - refusals
book available but no entry since 10/1/09.

06/03/09 - Checked outstanding licensing conditions, 11 and 13 still found to be in
breach. A warning letter was sent to the premises.

4 F LIC 1A




Page 79

22/08/09 ~ Complaint received that raw meat from the premises is disposed of into
the commercial waste bin, and creating unpleasant smells. Officers visited and
established this was a problem, and advice was given.

06/08/09 — Complaint alleging that the disposal of raw meat continues to be a
problem. Officers visited and saw that the raw meat was stil disposed of into the
commercial waste bin, and the premises was given a verbal warning.

24/08/09 — The LBE alcohol training material was sent to the premises.

28/08/09 — Complaint alleging noise disturbance from deliveries to the premises, very
early in the morning.

16/10/09 ~ Police received information that the staff at the premises give out fake £1
coins in-change and sell fake packets of rizzla. Trading Standards visited and
advised. A selection of Rizla papers were purchased in order to be tested, and
results showed they were genuine.

18/12/09 ~ Food officers visited the premises to check for counterfeit spirits. 5 x 70cl
suspect counterfeit Glen's vodka found on shelf behind serving counter, and were
seized under the Trade Marks Act. A formal sample was taken from one bottle and
the owner of the business, Mr Sefer Govtepe, was served with a seizure notice. He
said that he bought the Glen's from Dhamecha in Crown Road about a month ago.
The officer informed him that he would be asked to produce invoice.

18/05/10 — Full compliance check carried out. The outstanding conditions were: 11 —
no refusals book; 13 — no training records: 15 — no drinking control sign. All relevant
material issued to Mr Govtepe.

03/06/10 ~ An attempted test purchase of alcohol using an underage Trading
Standards volunteer was refused.

11/08/10 ~ An attempted test purchase of alcohol using an underage Trading
Standards volunteer was refused.

26/11/10 — Complaint relating to overflowing bins at premises, and leaving overflow
of rubbish which attracts rats. The waste contract was cancelled due to non payment
of fees, and council officers identified the premises rubbish in residential bins. Advice
given to Mr Govtepe. ' :

24/01/11 - Information received from Enviro Crime Officer who suspected possible

duty free cigarettes were being sold from under the counter in the premises. The

officer witnessed the cashier serve a customer items from under the counter making
sure they were in a black bag, which was closed.

01/02/11 - Trading Standards, the Police and Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs
(HMRC) carried out joint visits to premises in the borough to see if non duty paid
alcohol or tobacco were being sald. The visits were only made to premises with EN
postcodes as the HMRC team that was involved in the operation only cover those
addresses in the borough. The list was compiled using intelligence from both
Trading Standards and HMRC. HMRC identified the following products as being non
duty paid in Hertford Food Centre: 33.75 litres of assorted wines and 39.45 litres of
assorted spirits were seized. These products were seized by HMRC. The revenue
on these goods seized is £449.60.

5 FLIC 1A

4




Page 80

Additionally, the premises next door but one, Internet Service, 232 Hertford Road,
Enfield, EN3 5BL and its storage was also checked, as it is owned by Mr Govtepe.
235.2 litres of VVodka, 121.5 litres of various wines, 109.2 litres of Brandy and 41.7
litres of other sprits were seized as they were also identified as non duty paid. The
revenue due on the goods seized at Internet Service is £5,401.40.

No receipts were produced for the goods at the time the goods were seized. The
owners were given 28 days to produce the receipts for the goods seized to prove that

 they were bought at a wholesaler and that the duty had been paid. That period has
now expired and the receipts have not been provided.

11/02/11 - As a result of the recent seizures, a full licence inspection was attempted
at the premises, however, the only person present at the premises could not
understand the officers, so the inspection did not take place.

14/02/11 - Further information from the same Enviro Crime Officer: that the premises
and internet cafe continues to sell tax free cigarettes. The owners at these two
premises are also linked to Hertford Discount Store on the same parade, and that
there are more storage units at the rear of all these premises. '

18/02/11 - Officers visited premises to carry out the licence inspection, and met with
Mr Mehmet Govtepe, employee, however on the officers’ arrival, he indicated that he
was Mr Sefer Govtepe, the PLH and DPS. Conditions found to be in breach were: 5 -
CCTV clock was 50 minutes later than correct time; No CCTV sign displayed,;
Monitor had error message 'No HDD Connected’. Mr Mehmet Govtepe could not
operate the system so officers were unable to establish whether the CCTV was
recording or compliant; 6 - No raid control; 11 - No refusals book: 12 - No training
evident; 13 - No training records available. Mr Mehmet Govtepe stated that Mr Sefer
Govtepe was on the premises daily. 14 days were given to address the non
compliances, and an inspection report with advice was signed by and left with Mr
Mehmet Govtepe. Further verbal advice relating to raid control was given by Martyn
Fisher, Police Licensing Officer following this visit.

23/02/2011 Revisit to premises carried out as part of joint operation with HMRC,
Trading Standards, and the Police. HMRC officers seized 13.6kg of shisha tobacco,
and 3.15 litres of various spirits, as they were found to be non duty paid. No receipts
were produced for the goods at the time the goods were seized. The owners were
given 28 days to produce the receipts for the goods seized to prove that they were
bought at a wholesaler and that the duty had been paid. That period has now
expired and the receipts have not been provided. The goods seized amounted to
total duty evaded of £1503.44. :

Paul Cumberiand from HMRC has produced two statements relating to the said
seizures — see Appendix A and B.

11/03/11 - Officers carried out licensing revisit inspection with Mr Sefer Govtepe.
The following conditions were still found tc be in breach: 6 - Raid Control system not
in place fully; 12 - No training carried out; 13 - Training records not completed. An
inspection report was left advising a further 21 days to bring the outstanding issues
into compliance.

08/04/2011 - Officers carried out licensing revisit. Checked outstanding conditions.
Training carried out and records seen. Raid control seems to have been installed -
smoke notes seen, there was a box near the door that the owner claimed was a
camera but the officers were not 100% convinced, matter referred to police licensing
officer.

6 FLIC 1A




Page 81

13/04/11 — Trading Standards attempted a test purchase of cigarettes with child E.
The child was asked his age and the sale was refused.

Additional Information:

DCMS Guidance (11.26) states that there are certain criminal activities that may
arise in connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers
should be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sale of smuggled
tobacco and alcohol (ie non duty paid products).

DCMS guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsibility
authorities will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and
crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime
prevention objective is being undermined.through the premises being used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance —
should be seriously considered. g

If the licensing committee is not minded to revoke the premises licence completely,
Trading Standards (Weights and Measures) asks that consideration be given to
suspend the licence until such time that a vary Designated Premises Supervisor
application has been submitted and issued and the Licensing Enforcement Team are
confident that all licence conditions are being complied with. Trading Standards do
not believe that the current DPS is a suitable person to be named as the DPS, given
that non duty paid goods were found on the second visit, after such a short timeframe
in between visits, and the history of non compliant conditions. If the licence is not
revoked Trading Standards (Weights and Measures) also recommend modifying the
times and conditions of the licence, as detailed below, to help to prevent crime and
disorder associated with the sale of counterfeit and non-duty paid items on the
premises in the future.

Activity ) [ Current Times Proposed Times

Opening - 24 hours daily 07:00 - 23:00 daily

Alcohol 24 hours daily 0:00 - 23:00 daily

No. | Current Condition ~|TS [ Amended to read
Agree

3 | There shall be no aduit Y -

entertainment or services,

activities or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give |
rise to concern in respect of ’
_children.

‘4 | An alarm system, to BSEN50131, | Y
shall be installed, operated and
maintained at the premises.

A digital CCTV must be installed in | N

the premises complying with the
following criteria : (1) Cameras
must be sited to observe the
entrance and exit doors both
inside and outside, the alcohol
displays and floor areas; (2)
Cameras on the entrances must
capture full frame shots of the
heads and shoulders of all people

A digital CCTV system mustbe

installed in the premises complying

with the following criteria: (1) Cameras

must be sited to observe the entrance
and exit doors both inside and

outside, the alcohol displays, and fioor |

areas; (2) Cameras on the entrances
must capture full frame shots of the
heads and shoulders of all people
entering the premises i.e. capable of

F LIC 1A




Page 82

—T—

| entering the premises i.e. capable |

of identification; (3) Cameras
| viewing till areas must capture
| frames not less then 50% of
screen; (4) Cameras overlooking
floor areas should be wide angled
to give an overview of the
premises; (5) Be capable of
visually confirming the nature of
the crime committed; (6) Provide a
linked record of the date, time and
place of any image; (7) Provide
good quality colour images; (8)
Operate under existing light levels
within and outside the premises;
(8) Have the recording device
located in a secure area or locked’
cabinet; (10) Have a monitor to
review images and recorded
picture quality; (11) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous
quality of image capture and
retention. Maintenance contracts
must be made available to Police
on request; (12) Have signage -
displayed in the customer area to
advise that CCTV is in operation;
(13) Digital images must be kept
for 31 days; (14) Police will have
access to images at any
reasonable time; (15) The
equipment must have a suitable
export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer
so that the police can make an
evidential copy of the data they
require. This data should be in the
native file format, to ensure that no
image quality is lost when making
the copy. If this format is non-
standard (i.e. manufacturer
proprietary) then the manufacturer
should supply the replay software
to ensure that the video on the CD
can be replayed by the police on a
standard computer. Copies must
be made available to Police on
| request.

| identification; (3) Cameras viewing til

areas must capture frames not less
then 50% of screen; (4) Cameras
overlooking floor areas should be
wide angled to give an overview of the
premises; (5) Be capable of visually
confirming the nature of the crime
committed; (6) Provide a linked record
of the date, time, and place of any
image; (7) Provide good quality
images - colour during opening times
(8) Operate under existing light levels
within and outside the premises: (9)
Have the recording device located in a
secure area or locked cabinet; (10)
Have a monitor to review images and
recorded picture quality; (11) Be
regularly maintained to ensure
continuous quality of image capture
and retention; (12) Have signage
displayed in the customer area to
advise that CCTV is in operation; (13)
Digital images must be kept for 31
days; (14) Police and authorised
officers of the council will have
access to images at any reasonable
time; (15) The equipment must have a
suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD
writer so that the police and / or
authorised officer of the council can
make an evidential copy of the data
they require. This data should be in
the native file format, to ensure that
no image quality is lost when making
the copy. If this format is non-standard
(i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then
the manufacturer should supply the
replay software to ensure that the
video on the CD can be replayed by
the police on a standard computer.
Copies must be made available to
Police on request.

A Raid Control system must be
installed in the premises
complying with the following
criteria : (1) A time delay safe is
fitted under the counter; (2) A
separate covert real time camera
is fitted above the front door
monitoring customers exiting.
(Raid Camy); (3) A smoke note
system is installed; (4) All staff

FLIC 1A




B __] must be fully trained as to Raid |

Page 83

Controls use and a signed written
record of all training kept. This
must be made available to Police
or council officers on request; (5)
Cash must be minimised in the till
and the safe utilised.

7 Suitable steps shall be provided at | Y
the premises to allow the rear fire
exit to be used safely in an
emergency.

8 At least 2 members of staff shall N At least 2 members of staff shall be
be present on the shop-floor of the present on the shop floor of the
premises between 22:00 and premises at all times the premises are
06:00. open for licensable activities.

8 The premises must operate the N The Local Authority or similar proof of
Local Authority or similar proof of age scheme shall be operated and
age scheme and display the relevant material shall be displayed at
relevant material. Only passport, the premises. Only passport,
photographic driving licences or 1D photographic driving licences or ID
with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of with the P.A.S.8S. logo (Proof of Age
Age Standards Scheme) shall be Standards Scheme) may be accepted.

| accepted. -

10 | Prominent, clear and legible Y
notices shall be displayed at all
public exits from the premises
requesting customers respect the
needs of local residents and leave
the premises and area quietly.

These notices shall be positioned
at eye level and in a location
where they can be read by those
| leaving the premises. - -

11 A written record of refused sales N A written record of refused sales shall
must be kept on the premises and | be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. It completed when necessary. This
must be made available to Police record shall be made available to

| and/or the Local Authority upon Police and/or the Local Authority upon
request. request and shall be kept for at least
one year from the date of the last
L | 1 entry. -

12 | All staff must receive induction and | N All staff shall receive induction and
refresher training, relating to the refresher training (at least every three
sale of alcohol. months) relating to the sale of alcohol,

and the times and conditions of the
_premises licence.
13 | All training relating to the sale of N All training relating to the sale of

alcohol shall be documented and
records kept. This record must be
made available to the Police
and/or Local Authority upon
request.

alcohol and times and conditions of
the licence shall be documented and
records kept at the premises. These
records shall be madé available to the
Police and/or Local Authority upon
request and shall be kept for at least
one year.

FLIC 1A

Fo.




Page 84

14 [ Children under the age of 14 shall | N

16

| Signs shall be prominently Iy

not be permitted on the premises
after 21:00 unless accompanied
by an adutt.

|
|
|

| Children under 14 years, not

accompanied by an adult, are not
permitted to remain at or enter the
premises after 21:00 hours.

displayed on the exit doors
advising customers that the
premises is in a 'Drinking Control
Area' and that alcohol should not
be consumed in the street. These
notices shall be positioned at eye
level and in a location where they
can be read by those leaving the
premises.

Deliveries will not be made tothe | N
premises between the hours of
22:00 and 06:00.

| Deliveries will not be made to the

premises between the hours of 21:00
and 07:00.

17

Deliveries shall not cause a noise | N
nuisance to local residents.

Remove — covered by other legislation

' Annex 3 Proposed Conditions - | Agreed
additional by ;
Applicant |

The premises licence holder and
any other persons responsible for
the purchase of stock shall not
purchase any goods from door-to-
door sellers unless they are from a
bona fide company.

The premises licence holder shall
ensure that all receipts for goods
bought are kept together in a file
or folder as evidence that they
have been brought into the UK
though legal channels. These
records shall be made available to
the Police and/or Local Authority
upon request and shall be kept for
at least one year.include.
Receipts shall show the following
details:

i) Seller's name and address

ii) Seller's company details, if
applicable

iii) Seller's VAT details, if
applicable

iv) Seller’'s vehicle details, if
applicable.

Copies of these documents shall
be retained on the premises and
made available to police or
authorised officers of the council
on request within one week of the
request.

_—

10

F LIC 1A

o=




Page 85

the store to check the authenticity
of all stock purchased which bears
_| acustoms stamp. S
The premises licence holder shall

‘| ensure that the pavement from the
building line to the kerb edge

| immediately outside the.premises,
including the gutter/channel at its
junction with the kerb edge, is kept
clean and free from litter at all
material times to the satisfaction of

| An ultra violet light will be used at | - T ———

| the Licensing Authority. -
Waste collections shall not be

made from the premises between
the hours of 21:00 and 07:00. -

A personal licence holder is to
be present on the premises and
supervise the sale of alcohol,
throughout the permitted hours

for the sale of alcohol. ] =

The posters, training material, training records and refusals book are all available
from Trading Standards.

Trading Standards (Weights and Measures) reserve the right to give evidence on any
further incidents relating to breaches of the licensing objectives which may take place
at, orin the vicinity of the premises, between the submission of this representation
and the hearing or during the time allowed for any appeal proceedings. Additionally,
Trading Standards reserve the right to present details of the outcome of any Court
hearings between the submission of this representation and the hearing.

Suspension of Licence: N

Revocation of Licence: Y

Recommended period of suspension { max 3 months):

'Reasons for Revocation

A significantly large quantity of non duty paid products has been sized from this
premises following numerous complaints alleging that the premises sells illegal
tobacco and alcohol. After two seizures within one month, the revenue due on the

goods seized totals at £7,354.44.

The Secretary of State believes that the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol
should be treated particularly seriously and that where licence réview are submitted
and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being
undermined revocation of the licence, even in the first instance should be seriously

considered.

There is a continued history of illegal activity at the premises. Advice to compliance
has been given on the number of occasions and despite this illegal activity continued.
Trading Standards have no confidence in the ability of the PLH/DPS to manage the
premises in accordance with the licence and other Trading Standards and HMRC

11 F LIC 1A

L L o JUFT.




Page 86

requirements.

Please tick yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before I No

If yes please state the date of that application
== - Day Month Year

b

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
what they were and when you made them

Please tick yes
* I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible |
authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club

premises certificate, as appropriate . E
* | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements |

my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003
TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

)
Signature i e
Date 10" May 2011
Capacity Principal Trading Standards Officer - Licensing Enforcement

Trading Standards (Weights and Measures)

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-
mail address (optional)

12 F LIC 1A

———




Page 87

Rppendix A .

- WITNESS STATEMENT

ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY
(CJ Act 1967, 5.9; MC Act 1980, 85.5A(3)(a) and 58; MC Rules 1981, r.27, CP Rules Part 27.1)

Statement of: Qati Terance Cumberfand

Age If under 18: (If over 18 Insert ‘over 18') Occupatien: H M Revenue and Customs

This statement (consisting of | page(s) each signed by me is true to the best of my knowledge and bellef and [

make it knowin Ifit Is tendered in evidence, 1 shall'be liable to prasecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything
which I know 16 be false or do not believe to be true.

\

Signature: / 7L A e’ - Date: 4th April 2011

=

I am an Officer of H M Revenue & Customs based in Haven House, Ipswich, Suffolk, IP4 IDN. In
my role as a Law Enforcement Coordinator my duties include being responsible for exchanging
information with the Police and other Agencies relating to matters of mutual interest.

I have been asked by Ellie Green, Principal Trading Standards Officer, Environmental Protection &
Regulation, London Borough of Enfield, to supply details of inspections made by HM Revenue &
Customs Officers, on 1™ February and 23" F ebruary 2011 at Hertford Food Centre, 236 Hertford
Road, Enfield, EN3 5 BL, for the purpose of supporting an action being taken by the Licensing
Team at Enfield Trading Standards. =

I'have examined the reports concerning the visit and can confirm that on the 1% F ebruary Officers
seized a total of 33.75 litres of assorted wine and 39.45 Litres of assorted spirits, from the owner of
the shop Mr Sefer Govtepe as liable to forfeiture by virtue of the Customs & Excise Acts. They
were satisfied that due to the proprietors inability to produce invoices or receipts to prove duty
payment, that United Kingdom Excise Duty had not been paid on said goods.

The Revenue on the goods seized is £ 449.60

I'have examined the reports concerning the visit and can confirm that on the 23™ February Officers
seized a total of 13.60 kg Shisha flavoured tobacco and 3.15 litres of various spirits.

The revenue due on the seized goods is £1503.44
The goods were seized as liable to forfeiture under Customs & Excise Acts.

No notice of claim against the forfeiture was received within the statutory time limit therefore the
Spirits and Wine are condemned as forfeited in accordance with PPS of schedule 3 to CEMA

Signature:%_ﬁ_/__:/ Signature: A 52

(signature of witness) (slgnature witnessed b

(A

STATEMENT OF WITNESS: ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY
Page 1 of 1
ENF681A 12/2009




Page 88

Appendix &

WITNESS STATEMENT

ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY
- (GJ Acl 1967, 5.9; MC Act 1880, 55.5A(3)(a) and 5B; MC Rules 1981, r.27, CP Rules Part 27.1)

Statement of: Paui Terence Cumberland

Age If under 18: (If over 18 insert ‘over 187 Occupation: H M Revenue and Customs

make it knowing that,/f it Is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it anything

which I know to be faise or j)-xot believe to be trug:
signature: /7 7. W pate: ath April 2011

I am an Officer of H M Revenue & Customs based in Haven House, Ipswich, Suffolk, iP4 1DN. In
my role as a Law Enforcement Coordinator my duties include being responsible for exchanging
information with the Police and other Agencies relating to matters of mutual interest.

This statement(/?ng of | . page(s) each signed by me Is true to the best of my knowledge and bellef and I

I'have been asked by Ellie Green, Principle Trading Standards Officer, Enfield Trading Standards,
to supply details of inspections made by HM Revenue & Customs Officers, on ls‘ngruary 2011 at
Internet Café , 232 Hertford Road, Enfield ;which is associated to Hertford Food Centre 236
Hertford Road, Enfield EN3 5 BL for the purpose of supporting an action being taken by the -
Licensing Team at Enfield Trading Standards ,

I have examined the reports concerning the visit and can confirm that Sefer Govtepe, the owner of
Hertford Food Centre was present on the 1* February 2011 when Officers seized a total of 235.2
litres of Vodka ,121.5 Litres of various wines, 109.2 litres of Brandy and 41.7 Litres of other spirits,
as liable to forfeiture by virtue of the Customs & Fxcise Acts, from him. They were satisfied that
due to the proprietors inability to produce invoices or receipts to prove duty payment, that United
Kingdom Excise Duty had not been paid on said goods.

The revenue due on the seized goodsis £5,401.40

The goods were seized as liable to forfeiture under Customs & Excise Acts.

No notice of claim against the forfeiture was received within the statutory time limit thetefore the
spirits and wine are condemned as forfeited in accordance with PP5 of schedule 3 to CEMA

Signature:

(signature of witness) (signature witnessed by)

STATEMENT OF WITNESS: ENGLAND AND WALES ONLY

Page 1af 1

12/12009

ENF681A




Page 89

Property Index number: «UKEY»

ENFIELD
Council

TRADING STANDARDS (WEIGHTS AND MEASURES) REVIEW APPLICATION:
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This review application is made by the Enfield's Trading Standards Service (inspectors
of Weights & Measures) and is made in consultation with and on behalf of the Health &
Safety authority, the Environmental Health authority and the Child Protection Board.

I confirm | am authorised to speak at any hearing on behalf of the Health & Safety
authority, the Environmental Health authority, the Child Protection Board and Enfield's
Trading Standards Service (inspectors of Weights & Measures). :

Name and address of premises: Hertford Food Centre,
236 Hertford Road,
Enfield,
EN3 5BL.

Type of Application: Review of Licence (Trading Standards)

The Review Application

I am confident that you have read the report that has been provided to you in relation to
this Trading Standards review application. : )

I would like to take this opportunity to summarise and emphasise the main areas of
concern which has led us here today, for the revocation of Hertford Food Centre
premises licence. '

The report shows that Mr Govtepe, the premises licence holder and DPS has been
involved with the premises since 2007, which indicates that Mr Govtepe has had plenty
of experience in running an off licence.

However, a number of alleged non compliances have been highlighted in the report.

The premises has breached 7 of their licence conditions on 7 occasions since
December 2008, despite advice and warnings being issued, a total of 23 breaches of
conditions — which is an alarmingly frequent figure.

One previous seizure of counterfeit alcohol at this premises was carried out by LBE, in
2009.

More recently, two allegations that tax free cigarettes were being sold from the
premises, which were actually observed by an LBE Enviro Crime Officer.

As a result of this previous history, on 1% February 2011, the premises was targeted for
a visit during the joint operation with Trading Standards, the Police and HMRC. HMRC
identified 33.75 litres of assorted wines and 39.45 litres of assorted spirits as being non
duty paid, and were subsequently seized by HMRC. The revenue on these goods -
seized is £449.60.

Additionally, the premises next door but one, Internet Service, 232 Hertford Road,

Enfield, EN3 5BL and its storage was also checked, as it is also owned by Mr Govtepe.
235.2 litres of Vodka, 121.5 litres of various wines, 109.2 litres of Brandy and 41.7 litres

F K01/37

E I8




Page 90

Property Index number: «UKEY»

of other sprits were seized as they were also identified as non duty paid. The revenue
due on the goods seized at Internet Service is £5,401.40.

Despite all these seizures on 1% February 2011, a revisit was carried out at Hertford
Food Centre as a continuation of the joint operation. HMRC officers seized 13.6kg of
shisha tobacco, and 3.15 litres of various spirits, as they were found to be non duty
paid. The goods seized amounted to total duty evaded of £1503.44.

Paul Cumberland froam HMRC has produced two statements relating to these seizures
— see Appendix A and B. However to sum up, no receipts were produced for the goods
at the time any of the goods were seized. The owners were given 28 days to produce
the receipts for the goods seized to prove that they were bought at a wholesaler and
that the duty had been paid. That period has now expired and the receipts have not
been provided.

The total revenue due on goods for sale by Mr Govtepe is £7,354.44 — an extortionate
amount! It raises even further concerns that Mr Govtepe persisted in selling non duty
paid goods, even after the first large seizure, when he was fully aware of the law.

However, on 1% June 2011, | received an email from NARTS on behalf of Mr Govtepe,
who stated that he will voluntarily impose some of the conditions proposed by Trading
Standards in the review application, as from 3™ June 2011. The wording of voluntary
conditions were slightly different to those as given by Trading Standards, however, we
still believe the wording of our conditions to be appropriate.

Conditions offered:
1. No alcoholic goods will ever be purchased from sellers calling to the shop.

2. Invoices (or copies) for all alcoholic goods on the premises will be kept at the shop
and made available to officers from the council, police or HMRC upon request,

3. A stock control system will be introduced, so that the licensee can quickly identify
where and when alcoholic goods have been purchased.

4. An ultra-violet light will be available at the premises for the purpose of checking the
UK Duty Stamp on spirits as soon as practical after they have been purchased.

5. If any spirits bought by the company have UK Duty Stamps that do not fluoresce
under ultra-violet light, or are otherwise suspicious, the licensee shall identify the
supplier to Trading Standards Department and HMRC as soon as possible.

6. Any alcohol and tobacco purchases will be kept in the stock room and will be
checked by the premises licence holder or DPS for compliance of conditions number 2,
3, 4 & 5 stated above.

On 10" June 2011, licensing enforcement officers were tasked to carry out a check of
the current licence and to check whether the voluntary conditions actually had been
imposed. The officers spoke to Mr Mehmet Govtepe, part owner, and were able to

F K01/37

|
N
]

-




Page 91

Property Index number; «<UKEY»

establish that the voluntary conditions offered had been implemented. No other
outstanding conditions were established, and officers checked bottles for authenticity —
no problems found. Officers saw receipts dated 4, 5 and 10 June 2011 from Dhamecha
Foods Ltd, 28 Crown Road, Enfield EN1 1TH that had a list of different alcoholic spirits
including vodka, Jack Daniels, whisky and named wine on it. The officers also tested
the ultra violet light against a bottle of spirits on the shelf and again, no problems found.

Should the committee be minded to amend conditions, please bear in mind that the
Trading Standards review application initially proposed a condition relating to
deliveries. In light of the Planning representation, Trading Standards now seek to
amend this proposed condition to bring it into line with Planning:

Deliveries and collections to and from the premises shall only take place
between the hours of 0800hrs to 1900hrs Monday to Saturday and none at all on
Sundays or Bank Holidays.

The report directs us to the Home Office Guidance (11.26) which states that there are
certain criminal activities that may arise in connection with licensed premises, which
the Secretary of State considers should be treated particutarly seriously. The list
includes the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products).

Home Office guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible
authorities will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime.
Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention
objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is
expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

The committee may comment that the police did not support the Trading Standards
raview application. | would like to take this opportunity ta remind you that the Home
Office Guidance states that the police are the main source of advice on Crime and
Disorder matters, but not the only authority. It also states that the police are expected
to have a key role in advising premises on the prevention of crime and disorder, but
Trading Standards, as a responsible authority, may also take measures to deter
criminal activity, it is not restricted to the police only. Therefore we urge you not to give
any less consideration in your decision making process as the police did not support
the review application on this occasion.

Conclusion:

A significantly large quantity of non duty paid products has been seized from Hertford
Food Centre and a related property, nat once but twice. There have also been
continuous breaches of licence conditions, even after plenty of officer advice. Therefore
Trading Standards believe that the crime prevention objective is being seriously
undermined, and we are not confident with the current management of the premises
that such activities will cease.

Trading Standards therefore believe that it is necessary to revoke the premises licence

in its entirety in order to fully support the prevention of crime and disorder licensing
objective. -

F K01/37

T TR e e e

1




Page 92

Property Index number: «UKEY»

Oid Licénce

This is a simple revocation application on the grounds that this licence is out of date in
that the plan does not match the layout, therefore cannot be legally used.

F K01/37




Page 93

Rpper‘cun oL,
LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD LICENSING AUTHORITY
LICENSING ACT 2003 (HEARINGS) REGULATIONS 2005 E NFgE LD!
ouncl,

DECISION NOTICE

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13 JULY 2011

Applications were made by TRADING STANDARDS SERVICE for review of the Premises
Licences held by MR SEFER GOVTEPE at the premises known as and situated at
HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE, 236 HERTFORD ROAD, EN3.

The Licensing Sub-Committee RESOLVED that it considers the steps listed below to be
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives :

(1) Licence Number LN/200600789 — no step was necessary.

The Chairman made the following statement :

“In the first instance, we will deal with Licence Number LN/200600789. The licence holder
and his representative indicated during the hearing that they acknowledge that the licence
no longer carries weight, and, as in both the written and verbal representations from
Trading Standards, is unlawful. As such, the representative indicated his client's
preparedness to surrender this licence with immediate effect. Therefore, the Licensing Sub-

Committee has no decision to make."
(2) Licence Number LN/200800470 - to revoke the licence.

The Chairman made the foliowing statement :

“With regard to the current Licence Number LN/200800470, being still in operation, having
read and then heard all the evidence, the sub-committee was not persuaded by the
arguments given by the licence holder to the case brought by Trading Standards for the

| review of the licence. The panel has resolved to revoke the licence with immediate effect.

The answers that were provided to a range of questions from all the panel members were
both inconsistent and unconvincing, and ran counter to the evidence of and presented by

Trading Standards, who, we considered, made its case in full.

Over an extended period of time, dating back to December 2008, Trading Standards
officers have made numerous and repeated attempts to assist the licence holder to comply
with the conditions of the licence. Full inspection reports were provided, and were signed off
on site, and follow-up advice given on all occasions. The advice was not heeded, which was
of concern to the sub-committee, especially when bearing in mind that some of the same
conditions were repeatedly.being breached and not remediated. The first hint of any desire
to comply with the licence conditions came forward only in March 2011.

Despite the fact that progress has started to be made by the licence holder, there is
insufficient evidence to support this, and the history of the premises shows reluctance to

accept, heed, or act upon advice.

The Licensing Sub-Committee waé somewhat shocked that the licence holder is continuing

to purchase and sell goods from a supplier they allege had supplied them in the past with
|_counterfeit and non duty paid goods. This is in spite of having goods seized on two

— -




Page 94

| occasions during February 2011, where the combined duty value of these goods excesded |
£7,000.

Furthermore, the licence holder continued to sell non duty paid goods which he claims HM
Revenue and Customs had failed to discover during its raid on 1 February 2011, even
though by the time that such sales were made, he must have been aware that the sale of |

those goods was illegal.

The licence holder, through his representatives, continually asserted that the sub-committee
needs to be presented with evidence that the duty was not paid. However, the sub-

' committee members were not actually presented with any evidence that the duty had been

' paid. In fact, the panel was shocked that invoices were not routinely kept and / or :

demanded from the supplier.

' The licence holder also failed to demonstrate what steps he took or was taking to ensure he
|' was only purchasing from reputable suppliers.

| The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the summary point raised by the licence holder's
representative relating to the Guidance at Section 6.7. However, the sub-committee is more
persuaded by the guidance points 11.26 and 11.27, and considers that the licensing
objective — the prevention of crime and disorder has been seriously undermined by the
scale of the seizure of non duty paid goods; and that the licensing objectives have been

further undermined by persistent breaches of the licence conditions.

As a result, Licensing Sub-Committee reaffirms that it has resolved to revoke Licence '
Number LN/200800470, and considers this decision to be both necessary and proportionate

for the promotion of the licensing objectives.”

T

[

' Date Notice Sent : 15 July 2011 _ ‘
| . .- _ :
)' Signed : [\\KC/L/((‘__ __\/ Principal Licensing Officer }

[— a
|

Under the Licensing.Act 2003 you have a right of appeal against this decision within‘21
days of receiving this notice. Any appeal should be made in writing to the Enfield
Magistrates Court. The contact details for Enfield Magistrates are as follows: '

| Enfield Magistrates Court,
| The Court House, Lordship Lane, Tottenham, London, N17 6RT.

Tel: 020 8808 5411 or Fax: 020 8885 4343

APPEAL

L P




Page 95

Appenclen 3
ENFIELD

Council

www.enfield.gov.uk

TRADING STANDARDS (WEIGHTS AND MEASURES) REPRESENTATION

This representation is made by the Enfield's Trading Standards Service (inspectors of
Weights & Measures) and is made in consultation with and on behalf of the Planning
authority, the Health & Safety authority, the Environmental Health authority and the

Child Protection Board.

| confirm | am authorised to speak at any hearing on behalf of the Planning authority
the Health & Safety authority, the Environmental Health authority, the Child Protection
Board and Enfield's Trading Standards Service (inspectors of Weights & Measures).

Name and address of premises: Hertford Food Centre,
: 236 Hertford Road,
Enfield,
EN3 5BL.

Type of Application: New Premises Licence

I certify that | have considered the application shown above and | wish to make
representations that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to the
Council’s Licensing Objectives for the following reasons:

Background History:

This is a new application to allow the premises, which is a supermarket to be open and
sell alcohol (off sales) for 24 hours daily.

The premises was until recently already licensed for these activities and for these
times, however the licence (LN/200800470) was revoked by the licensing committee on
13/7/2011 following a Trading Standards review application. However, on 2" August
2011, Hertford Food Centre submitted an appeal of this decision to Enfield Magistrates
Court. Due to the short period of time between the revocation decision and the new
application (14/7/2011), Trading Standards feel that it is necessary to refer to their
review application for further background information — see Appendix A. The decision

notice is also attached as Appendix B. NB ~ In Tul 2015 ranens e dotuneds

wve Appodkiox | € D
In the new application, the premises licence holder and Designated Premlses
Supervisor (DPS) are both named as Mr Suleyman Erdogan. Trading Standards are
not aware of his involvement with the premises under the old licence.

Since 13/7/11, Council records show no trading standards or licensing complamts in
relation to this premises.

The appeal period for the revocation decision expired on 5/8/11. The last date for
representations for the new application is 11/8/11. Therefore there is a period when the
premises are not lawfully permitted to sell alcohol.

On Tuesday 9" August 2011, an officer (EVG) visited the premiscs. It was noted that
the bilue notice was displayed correctly. EVG spoke to Mr Mehmet Govtepe, the person
in charge at the premises, and Ms Besime Koker, who interpreted on behalf of Mr
Govtepe. Ms Koker stated that she has been an employee at the premises for nearly
three years, and that Mr Suleyman Erdogan is the night time manager at the premises,

—



Page 96

and has been working there approximately one year. Ms Koker stated she did not know
Mr Sefer Govtepe, the named premises licence holder and designated premises

supervisor under the revoked premises licence.

Prevention of Nuisance:

The premises is located on a commercial stretch of Hertford Road close to the junction
with Green Street. There are many licensed premises in the vicinity including:

Co-op - alcohol (latest 23:00)

Hertford Food Centre — alcohol (24 hours)

Hare Wines - alcohol (latest 23:00)

Hertford Discount £ Store — alcohol (latest 23:00)

Highway Supermarket - alcohol (latest 23:00)

TFC - alcohol (latest 23:00)

Hare Wines - aicohol (latest 23:00)

Efe Food and Wine House - alcohol (latest 01:00)

Sirwan - alcohol (latest 23:00)

Favourite Chicken and Ribs — LNR (latest 01:00)

Speedo Pizza - LNR (latest 01:00)

Akar Kebab - LNR (latest 01:00)

Mega Pizza — LNR (latest 00:00)

Sporting Green — alcohol, indoor sporting events, recorded music (latest 01:00),

live: music, facilities for making music (latest 00:30).

o The Black Horse - alcohol; films, recorded music (latest 03:00), late night
refreshment (latest 03:30), facilities for making music, live music, indoor
sporting events (latest 01:00)

e The Offy and General Stores — alcohol (latest 01:00)

Residents:

There is a mixture of residential and commercial premises in this location, with
residential streets running off Hertford Road. There are also residential premlses

above some of the shops.

In summary | wish to make representation on the following:

¢ Prevention of Public Nuisance
e The Protection of Children from Harm

I have no objection to the activities applied for. However, | do object in part to the hours
applied for, and recommend the following times:

| Activity Applied for Hours TS Suggested Hours
Open 24 hours daily 08:00 — 01:00 daily
“Alcohol 24 hours daily 08:00 — 01:00 daily
(off sales) - | . |

| would also recommend the following conditions be attached to the licence to promote
the licensing objectives. These conditions amend the proposed conditions in Annex 2

as indicated.

"




Page 97

| Proposed Cenditions — Annex 2 TS Agree | Amended to Read /
=)  Iet ol Suggestion
| 3 | There shall be no adult entertainment or | Y
| services, activities or matters ancillary.to
| the use of the premises that may give rise

to concern in respect of children.

4 | An alarm system, to BSEN50131, shall be | Y
installed, operated and maintained at the

premises.

5 | A digital CCTV must be installed in the | N Amend the following
premises complying with the following section:
criteria : (1) Cameras must be sited to
observe the entrance and exit doors both (14) Police and
inside and outside, the aicohol displays authorised officers of the
and floor areas; (2) Cameras on the council will have
entrances must capture full frame shots of access to images at
the heads and shoulders of all people any reasonable time;

entering the premises i.e. capable of
identification; (3) Cameras viewing till
areas must capture frames not less then
50% of screen; (4) Cameras overlooking
floor areas should be wide angled to give
an overview of the premises; (5) Be
capable of visually confirming the nature
of the crime committed; (6) Provide a
linked record of the date, time and place
of any image; (7) Provide good quality
colour images; (8) Operate under existing
light levels within and outside the
premises; (9) Have the recording device
located in a secure area or locked
cabinet; (10) Have a monitor to review
images and recorded picture quality; (11)
Be regularly maintained to ensure
continuous quality of image capture and
retention: Maintenance contracts must be
made available to Police on request; (12)
Have signage displayed in the customer
area to advise that CCTV is in operation;
(13) Digital images must be kept for 31
days; (14) Police will have access to
images at any reasonable time; (15) The
equipment must have a suitable export
method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the
police can make an evidential copy of the
data they require. This data should be in
the native file format, to ensure that no
image quality is lost when making the
copy. If this format is non-standard (i.e.
manufacturer proprietary) then the
manufacturer. should supply the replay
software to ensure that the video on the
CD can be replayed by the police on a

N— T



Page 98

| standard computer. Copies must be made
| available to Police on request.

A Raid Control system must be installed
in the premises complying with the
following criteria : (1) A time delay safe is
fitted under the counter; (2) A separate
covert real time camera is fitted above the
front door monitoring customers exiting.
(Raid Camy); (3) A smoke note system is
installed; (4) All staff must be fully trained
as to Raid Controls use and a signed
written record of all training kept. This
must be made available to Police or
council officers on request; (5) Cash must
be minimised in the till and the safe
utilised.

Suitable steps shall be provided at the
premises to allow the rear fire exit to be
used safely in an emergency.

At least 2 members of staff shall be
present on the shop-floor of the premises
between 22:00 and 06:00.

At least two members of
staff shall be present on
the shop-floor of the
premises between 22:00
and 01:00.

NB. This end time
reflects the TS
recommendation for the

The premises must operate the Local
Authority or similar proof of age scheme
and display the relevant material. Only
passport, photographic driving licences or
ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age
Standards Scheme) shali be accepted.

reduction of hours.

10

Prominent, clear and legible notices shall
be displayed at all public exits from the
premises requesting customers respect
the needs of local residents and leave the
premises and area quietly. These notices
shall be positioned at eye level and in a
location where they can be read by those
leaving the premises. ‘

11

A written record of refused sales must be
kept on the premises and completed
when necessary. It must be made
available to Police and/or the Local
Authority upon request.

A written record of
refused sales shall be
kept on the premises
and completed when
necessary. This record

shall be made available
to Police and/or the




Page 99

Local Authority upon
request and shall be
kept for at least one year
from the date of the last
entry.

12

Al staff must receive induction and
refresher training, relating to the sale of
alcohol.

All staff shall receive
induction and refresher
training (at least every
three months) relating to
the sale of alcohol, and
the times and conditions
of the premises licence.

13

All training relating to the sale of alcohol
shall be documented and records kept.
This record must be made available to the
Police and/or Local Authority upon
request. .

All training relating to the
sale of alcohol and times
and conditions of the
licence shall be
documented and
records kept at the
premises. These records
shall be made available
to the Police and/or
Local Authority upon
request and shall be
kept for at least one
year.

14

Children under the age of 14 shall not be
permitted on the premises after 21:00
unless accompanied by an adult.

15

Signs shall be prominently displayed on
the exit doors advising customers that the
premises is in a 'Drinking Contro! Area’
and that alcohol should not be consumed
in the street. These notices shall be
positioned at eye level and in a location
where they can be read by those leaving
the premises.

from sellers calling to the shop.

. .

16 | Deliveries will not be made to the
premises between the hours of 22:00 and
06:00.
17 | Deliveries shall not cause a noise
nuisance to local residents.
18 | No alcohol goods shall be purchased The premises licence

holder and any other
persons responsible for
the purchase of stock
shall not purchase any
goods from door-to-door
sellers unless they are




Page 100

19 | Invoices/Copies for alcohol goods shall
be kept at the Premises and will be made
available to Officers from the Council,
Police or HMRC upon request.

| from a bona fide

company.

The premises licence
holder shall ensure that
all receipts for goods
bought are kept together
in a file or folder as
evidence that they have
been brought into the
UK though legal
channels. These
records shall be made
available to the Police,
Local Authority and/or
HMRC upon request
and shall be kept for at
least one year. Receipts
shall show the following
details: (1) Seller's name
and address; (2) Seller's
company details, if
applicable; (3) Seller's
VAT details, if
applicable;-(4) Seller's
vehicle details, if
applicable. Copies of
these documents shall
be retained on the
premises and made
available to police or
authorised officers of the
council on request within
five working days of the
request.

20 | Stock control shall be introduced, so that
the licensee can identify when/where
alcohol goods were purchased.

21 | An ultra-violet light shall be available at
the Premises for the purpose of checking
the UK Duty Stamp on spirits as soon as
practical after they have been purchased.

An ultra violet light will
be used at the store to
check the authenticity of
all stock which bears a
customs stamp as soon
as practical after they
have been purchased.

22 | If any spirits bought by the Company
have UK Duty Stamps that do not
fluoresce under ultra-violet light, or are
otherwise suspicious, the licensee shall
identify the supplier to Trading Standards
and HMRC as soon as possible.

y




Page 101

Additional Conditions to be Added In | Applicant
Annex 3 Agree
N/A

Trading Standards reserve the right to provide further mformatlon to support this
representation.

If these conditions and hours were accepted in full | WOULD withdraw my
representation.

Duly Authorised: Ellie Green, Principal Trading Standards Officer — Licensing
Enforcement

(—.‘l ’ /7
B f—
Signed: 4 Date: 09/08/2011

Tel: 0208 379 8543 / ellie.green@enfield.gov.uk

—




Page 102




Page 103




Page 104




Page 105




Page 106




Page 107




Page 108

Apprrdik 5

il

Companies House

Current Il\fpointments Report for:
HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE LIMITED
07216126

Created: 04/03/2015 16:08:35

Companies House is a registry of corporate inforimatlon. We carry out basic checks to make sure that documents have
been fully completed and signed, but we do not have the statutory power or capability to verify the accuracy of the
information that corporate entities send to us. We accept all information that such entities dellver to us in good faith and
place it on the public record. The fact that the information has been placed on the public record should not be taken to
indlcate that Companles House has verified or validated it in any way.




Page 109

Company Register Information

Company Number: 07216126 Date of Incorporation:08/04/2010
Company Name: HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE LIMITED
Registerad Office: 236 HERTFORD ROAD
ENFIELD
EN3 5BL
Company Typs: Private Limited Company
Couniry of Origin: United Kingdom
Status: Active
Nature Of Business (SIC): 47240 - Retail sale of bread, cakes, flour confectionery and sugar confectionery
in specialised stores -
Number of Charges: ( 0 outstanding / 0 part satisfied / 0 satisfied)

Previous Names

No previous name information has been recorded over the last 20 years.

Key Filing Dates

Accounting Reference Date:

Last Accounts Made Up To:
Next Accounts Due:
Last Return Made Up To:

Next Return Due:

Last members list:

Last Bulk Shareholders List:

31/03

31/03/2014 (TOTAL EXEMPTION
SMALL)

31/12/2015

08/04/2014

06/05/2015

08/04/2014
Not availabie




Page 110

Current Appointments

Number of current appointments: 1

DIRECTOR: GOVTEPE, SEFER MR
Appointed: 01/04/2014
Natlonality: BRITISH
No. of Appointments: 1
Address: 238 HERTFORD ROAD
ENFIELD
UNITED KINGDOM
EN3 5BL
Couniry/State of Residence: ENGLAND

This Report excludes rasignations

Date of Birth: 10/10/1973




Page 111

Recent Filing History

_Documents filed since 05/07/2013

DATE
30/10/2014
22/05/2014
22/05/2014
20/05/2014
20/05/2014
04/11/2013
05/07/2013

FORM

AA

ARO1

LATEST SOC

APQ1

TMO1

AA

ARO1

DESCRIPTION

31/03/14 TOTAL EXEMPTION SMALL

08/04/14 FULL LIST

22/05/14 STATEMENT OF CAPITAL,GBP 20000

DIRECTOR APPOINTED MR SEFER GOVTEPE

APPOINTMENT TERMINATED, DIRECTOR SULEYMAN ERDOGAN
31/03/13 TOTAL EXEMPTION SMALL

08/04/13 FULL LIST

This Report excludes 88(2) Share Allotment documents

pr——




Page 112 AP’OQ(\dl <&

ENFIELD
Council

www.enfield.gov.uk

Regeneration & Environment

Mr Suleyman Erdogan Please replyto: Licensing Team

256A Hertford Road : POBox57 =

ENFIELD . Civic Centre, Silver Street
. Enfield, Middx. EN1 3XH

EN3 5BL Tel: 020 8379 3578

Fax: 020 83792190
Minicom: 020 8379 4419
Email: licensing@enfield.gov.uk
Myref: Mandatory Conditions
Yourref: LN/201100396
Date: From 28 May 2014

IMPORTANT - PLEASE READ

THIS LETTER CONCERNS YOUR NEW LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ANY
FAILURE TO ACT ON THESE MATTERS COULD LEAD TO YOUR PROSECUTION

Dear Mr Suleyman Erdogan
Re: Hertford Food Centre, 236 Hertford Road, ENFIELD, EN3 5BL

| refer to your Premises Licence and/or Club Premises Certificate, under the
Licensing Act 2003, in respect of the above premises/club premises.

If your licence/certificate authorises the sale/supply of alcohol then you must comply
with the contents of this letter. If alcohol is not authorised under the licence/certificate
please disregard this letter.

As you are aware, you must ensure that the operation of the premises/club
premises, complies with the conditions set out in Annexes 1, 2 and 3 of the
licence/certificate document.

I am writing to advise that new Mandatory Conditions have been attached to your
licence/certificate by Parliament. You must ensure that the operation of the
premises/club premises, under the licence/certificate, also complies with the
Mandatory Conditions, even though they are not printed on your licence/certificate
document.

Failure to comply with the conditions of your licence/certificate and/or the Mandatory
Conditions is a criminal offence with a maximum penalty, on conviction, of 6 months
imprisonment and a £20,000 fine.

The Mandatory Conditions are set out below:

1. (1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted
price.

(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph (1) —

h——




Page 113

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties
Act 1979(a);
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (DxV)
where —
(i) P is the permitted price,
(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as
if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the
alcohol;
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there
is in force a premises licence —
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or (iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there
is in force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club
present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to
prevent the supply in question; and
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the
Value Added Tax Act 1994(b).
(3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would
(apart from this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by
that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-
paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
(4) — (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by
Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from
the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to
the rate of duty or value added tax. (2) The permitted price which would apply on
the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the
expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on
relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible
promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a
manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and
disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children—
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to
require or encourage, individuals to —
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which
the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed
or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular
characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an individual

-



Page 114

in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in section
159 of the Act);
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period
of 24 hours or less;
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the
premises of a sporting event, where that provision is dependent on —

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or

(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;
(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or
flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to
refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

3. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

4. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

5. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure

that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

6. The responsible person shall ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed
container) it is available to customers in the following measures—

(i) beer or cider: ¥z pint;

(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 mi or 35 ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

NB. The “responsible person” means—
(a) in relation to licensed premises—
(i) the holder of a premises licence in respect of the premises,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) under such a licence, or
(ii) any individual aged 18 or over who is authorised for the purposes of this
section by such a holder or supervisor,
(b) in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables him to prevent the supply in question.




Page 115

The Home Office have produced Guidance (on banning the sale of alcohol
below the cost of duty plus VAT) and a Permitted Price Calculator. These
documents may be viewed, down-loaded and printed via the following web-
link: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/banning-the-sale-of-alcohol-below-
the-cost-of-duty-plus-vat

TRADING STANDARDS ADVICE :

You must buy tobacco, alcohol and any product that belongs to a registered brand
(trade mark) holder from a reputable supplier.

Furthermore, these products must be evidenced by receipts and available for
inspection to Trading Standards, HMRC and the Police upon request.

I must remind you that Trading Standards operate a zero tolerance policy that
includes prosecution, revocation of the licence and other enforcement disposals
against any individual or any premises found to have counterfeit alcohol, tobacco or
any other product belonging to a registered brand holder on the premise and
associated buildings/vehicles or on your person.

Yours sincerely

WL @\WM .

pp. The Licensing Team

.




Page 116 HP‘OQW\OH X

Please reply to:  Sheila Lahey

Mr S. Erdogan Trading Standards
Hertford Food Centre PO Box 57, Civic Centre
236 Hertford Road Silver Street, Enfield, Middx. EN1 3XH
Enfield Tel: 020 8379 8527
Fax:
EN3 5BL Textphone: 020 8379 4419

Email:  Sheila.lahey@enfield.gov.uk
My Ref: \WK/214047247
Your Ref:

Date: 9th September 2014
Dear Mr Erdogan

In March 2014, Enfield Trading Standards and HMRC visited the premises and
seized a quantity of alcohol showing counterfeit back labels.
This is a criminal offence.

Having carefully considered the facts of the case, Trading Standards have
decided not to take any formal action against you on this occasion.

However, you should take this letter as a warning as to your future conduct.
Should similar matters be brought to our attention again, it is unlikely that we
shall adopt such a lenient approach.

If you have any further queries. Please feel free to contact me on 020 8379
8527

Yours sincerely,

Sheila Lahey
Fair Trading Officer

.B
. £.5
lan Davis OO0
Director — Regeneration & Environment gg& m}
Enfield Council O
Civic Centre, Silver Street
Enfield EN1 3XY . Website: www.enfield.gov.uk

® For help with this document, please contact the above officer who will be able to assist in line with our accessible information policy



Page 117 ANNC>OS

METROPOLITAN

POLICE
Working together for a safer London

POLICE REPRESENTATION

Name and address of premises: Hertford Food Centre
236 Hertford Road

Enfield

EN3 5BL
Type of Application: Review Application
Worksheet number: WK/214094139

The Application

Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on the grounds
that the premises had been found to be selling non duty paid alcohol and tobacco.

Location

This premises is situated within a busy high street made up of both commercial and
residential properties.

History

| have researched Police crime and intelligence systems relating to this venue over the
last twelve months and there are no relevant reports relating to this matter.

Cumulative Impact Policy

These premises are located in the Enfield Highway Cumulative Impact Policy Area
(CIP).

The CIP states the core hours that should not be exceeded for each type of premises
in particular locations. These are:

Sale/supply of alcohol (off supplies only): Monday — Sunday 08:00 — 24:00

The current licensed hours for these premises are:

08:00 — 01:00 Mon — Sun

In summary | wish to make representation on the following:

—



Page 118

Prevention of crime & disorder
Public Safety

The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

The Metropolitan Police support Enfield Licensing Authority in seeking a review of the
premises licence on the grounds that the premises have been found to be selling
alcohol with counterfeit back labels in March 2014, non-duty paid cigarettes in August
2014 and non-duty paid alcohol and tobacco in February 2015. A previous licence has
already been revoked in 2011 for similar offences. The previous licence holder and the
current licence holder are business partners so the previous history of the premises is
relevant to this case. Despite already having lost one licence the same illegal activity
has continued to take place at this premises resulting in the Licensing Authority having
no confidence in those running the premises.

Additional Information:

DCMS Guidance (11.26) states that there are certain criminal activities that may arise
in connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers should be
treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sale of smuggled tobacco and
alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products).

DCMS guidance (11.27) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsibility
authorities will'use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime.
Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention
objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is
expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Suggested additional condition:

However, if the Licensing Committee does not deem it necessary to revoke the licence

in its entirety, it is recommended that the terminal hours be reduced in line with the
Cumulative impact Policy, the DPS be removed from the licence, the licence be
suspended for or 3 months and the following conditions be attached to the premises
licence: '

e A Personal Licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the
sale of alcohol throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.

¢ All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be
stored in a container clearly marked ‘Tobacco Stock’. This container
shall be kept within the store room or behind the sales counter.

e Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind
the sales counter in order to make a sale.

Officer. Martyn Fisher PC 357YE Tel: 0208 3796112
Martyn.Fisher@Enfield. Gov.uk

Date: 26™ March 2015

F KO1/37

e I



Page 119 ANNCX O &

Hertford Food Centre - WK/ 214094139
Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence : (a) At a time
when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence; or (b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children. '

4, Suitable steps shall be provided at the premises to allow the rear fire exit to
be used safely in an emergency.

5. The premises must operate the Local Authority or similar proof of age
scheme and display the relevant material. Only passport, photographic driving
licences or ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age Standards Scheme) shall be
accepted.

6. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public exits from
the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local residents and leave
the premises and area quietly. These notices shall be positioned at eye level and in
a location where they can be read by those leaving the premises.

7. Children under the age of 14 shall not be permitted on the premises after
21:00 unless accompanied by an adulit.

8. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors advising customers
that the premises is in a 'Drinking Control Area' and that alcohol should not be
consumed in the street. These notices shall be positioned at eye level and in a
location where they can be read by those leaving the premises.

9. Deliveries will not be made to the premises between the hours of 22:00 and
06:00.

10. Deliveries shall not cause a noise nuisance to local residents.

11. Stock control shall be introduced, so that the licensee can identify
when/where alcohol goods were purchased.

12. If any spirits bought by the Company have UK Duty Stamps that do not
fluoresce under ultra-violet light, or are otherwise suspicious, the licensee shall
identify the supplier to Trading Standards and HMRC as soon as possible.

13. A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the
following criteria : (1) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors

i




Page 120

both inside and outside, the alcohol displays, and floor areas; (2) Cameras on the
entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of all people
entering the premises i.e. capable of identification; (3) Cameras viewing till areas
must capture frames not less then 50% of screen; (4) Cameras overlooking floor
areas should be wide angled to give ah overview of the premises; (5) Cameras must
capture a minimum of 16 frames per second; (6) Be capable of visually confirming
the nature of the crime committed; (7) Provide a linked record of the date, time, and
place of any image; (8) Provide good quality images - colour during opening times;
(9) Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises; (10) Have
the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet; (11) Have a monitor
to review images and recorded picture quality; (12) Be regularly maintained to
ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (13) Have signage
displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation; (14) Digital
images must be kept for 31 days; (15) Police will have access to images at any
reasonable time; (16) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g.
CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data they
require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no image quality
is lost when making the copy. If this format is non-standard (i.e. manufacturer
proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay software to ensure that
the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on a standard computer. Copies
must be made available to Police or authorised local authority employees on
request.

14. If the premises remain open after 01:00, a Raid Control system must be
installed and procedures carried out : (1) A time delay safe is fitted and secured
under the counter to ensure cash is minimised in the till; (2) A separate covert real
time camera is fitted above the front door (Raid Cam); (3) A smoke note system is
installed; (4) All staff must be fully trained as to its use and a signed written record
kept of all training carried out and signed and dated by those receiving it; (5) Signs
must be displayed at the entrance advertising Raid Control is fitted in the premises.

16. At least two members of staff shall be present on the shop-floor of the
premises between 22:00 and 01:00.

16. A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and
completed when necessary. This record shall be made available to Police and/or the
Local Authority upon request and shall be kept for at least one year from the date of
the last entry.

17..  All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every three
months) relating to the sale of alcohol, and the times and conditions of the premises
licence. '

18.  All training relating to the sale of alcohol and times and conditions of the
licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These records shall
be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon request and shall be
kept for at least one year.

19. The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the
purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers unless
they are from a bona fide company.

g




Page 121

20. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought
are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought into the
UK though legal channels. These records shall be made available to the Police,
Local Authority and/or HMRC upon request and shall be kept for at least one year.
Receipts shall show the following details: (1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's
company details, if applicable; (3) Seller's VAT details, if applicable; (4) Seller's
vehicle details, if applicable. Copies of these documents shall be retained on the
premises and made available to police or authorised officers of the council on
request within five working days of the request.

21.  An ultra violet light will be used at the store to check the authenticity of all
stock which bears a customs stamp as soon as practical after they have been
purchased.

CONDITIONS REQUESTED BY LICENSING AUTHORITY:

22. A Personal Licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the
sale of alcohol throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.

23. All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a
container clearly marked ‘Tobacco Stock’. This container shall be kept within the
store room or behind the sales counter.

24. Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the
sales counter in order to make a sale.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

| [




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123 Agenda Item 5
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 15 APRIL 2015

COUNCILLORS

PRESENT (Chair) Derek Levy, Daniel Anderson and Glynis Vince
ABSENT
OFFICERS: Ellie Green (Principal Licensing Officer), Charlotte Palmer

(Licensing Enforcement Officer), PC Pat Cahill (Metropolitan
Police Service), Dina Boodhun (Legal Services
Representative), Jane Creer (Democratic Services)

Also Attending:  Councillor Alan Sitkin (Bowes Ward Councillor)
Ms Leyla Hassan and Mr Mehmet Ali Arslan (Applicant)

518
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chair welcomed all those present and explained the order of the meeting.
There were no apologies for absence.

519
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

NOTED that there were no declarations of interest in respect of items on the
agenda.

520
THE BIRD IN HAND, 100 TOTTENHALL ROAD, LONDON, N13 6DG
(REPORT NO. 214)

RECEIVED the application made by B. Lads Limited for the premises known
as and situated at The Bird In Hand, 100 Tottenhall Road, London, N13 6DG
for a new Premises Licence.

NOTED

1. The opening statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer,
including the following points:
a. This was an application for a new Premises Licence for The Bird In
Hand.
b. There was already a Premises Licence for the venue, held since a
conversion in 2005.
c. Since 2011, the Premises Licence had been held by B. Lads Ltd,
who was also the applicant in this case.

- 409 -



Page 124

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

d. A copy of the current Premises Licence was included as Annex 02
in the agenda pack. This licence had not been subject to any review.

e. The application for a new Premises Licence was attached as Annex
03 in the agenda pack, and the hours sought were summarised on
page 2 of the report.

f. The need for an application for a new Premises Licence rather than
a variation to the current licence arose from the significant and
substantial change to the premises layout. The new plan was shown on
page 26 of the agenda pack. The Licensing Act and Regulations
specified what must be shown on the plan, which forms part of the
Premises Licence. As there had been significant alterations, the current
licence was technically not valid.

g. The Chair noted that a refusal of the application by the Licensing
Sub-Committee (LSC) would leave the applicant with an invalid
Premises Licence, but that the LSC could choose not to grant hours
sought, but to grant the plan.

h. The application was subject to representations from the Licensing
Authority and the Metropolitan Police, both objecting to any extension
of hours above those in the current licence.

i. The application was also subject to representations from interested
parties who were local residents who objected to any extension of
hours, and were represented at the hearing by Councillor Alan Sitkin,
Bowes Ward Councillor.

J. A petition signed by objectors was attached in Annex 06. It was
reported that IP19, Mr Andrew Sojos of 4 Wolves Lane, had withdrawn
his representation against the application for the reason that at the time
of the petition he was ill advised of the reasons for the application. It
was also confirmed that IP25 Mr A Perdikos had withdrawn his
representation against the application and had submitted a letter in
support, as set out on page 29 of the agenda pack. This left a total of
25 interested party representations in objection rather than 27.

k. It was noted that the petition opposing the application did not give
details of the hours and activities applied for.

I. A petition signed by people in support of the application was
submitted by Ms Leyla Hassan as set out on pages 31-35 of the
agenda pack. It was noted that details of hours sought for recorded
music had been mistakenly noted as 30 minutes less than in the
application in the proposal details attached to the petition.

The opening statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement
Officer, on behalf of the Licensing Authority, including the following
points:

a. This premises already had a Premises Licence. As a result of its
layout being substantially altered, a new application was required.
Therefore the Licensing Authority had no objection to grant if the
application had just been for an amended plan. However, the
application was also for longer hours.

- 410 -



Page 125

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

b. The issue of the plan had been raised by officers on 14/06/14, when
it was noted that the premises layout did not reflect the plan attached to
the licence and advice was given to submit an application.

c. The Licensing Authority objected to the longer hours sought on the
grounds of prevention of public nuisance.

d. In February 2013 the Premises Licence was varied by means of a
minor variation application to strengthen the licence at the request of
the Licensing Authority and the Police, following a series of assaults
and disturbances. This included the introduction of door staff on Friday
and Saturday nights.

e. The premises was in a highly residential area, near a roundabout
with roads leading off in four directions.

f. There were concerns that an increase in hours would lead to an
increase in noise nuisance.

g. The Council had received complaints relating to this premises from
four different residents since April 2013.

h. The premises had shown difficulty and inconsistency in dealing with
noise.

i. There had never been noise at a level such as to require serving a
Noise Abatement Notice, but the licensing objective related to
prevention of public, not statutory, nuisance.

J. Ambient noise levels would be lower at night, and at later hours
noise would be likely to cause nuisance.

k. The proposal set out on the petition submitted by the applicant
contained hours for recorded music that were less than those actually
applied for. This unfortunately called into question whether people
would still have signed it knowing the correct time.

I. She clarified that since 18/02/14 there had been 20 Temporary Event
Notices (TENS) at the premises covering 44 days. Six of those were
withdrawn and re-submitted with reduced hours. Sometimes more than
one TEN had been submitted on the same day, for example five were
submitted on 22/10/14. The Police and Environmental Health had only
three days to make any objection to a TEN, and if several were
submitted together, were not able to see how the first event went
before considering whether to make an objection to the next TEN.

Charlotte Palmer responded to questions as follows:

a. In response to queries from Councillor Vince regarding the
maximum number of TENs permitted per year, it was advised that a
premises may request 12 separate events covering 15 days within a
year.

b. In response to further queries regarding TENs from Councillor
Anderson, it was advised that a TEN could not be withdrawn, but if
there was serious crime and disorder at an event, a closure notice
could be served if necessary. The nuisance to residents from this
premises had related to volume of music and control of people, which
was not serious enough to get a magistrate to close the premises.

- 411 -



Page 126

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

c. Inresponse to the Chair’s query why further TENs were not objected
to, it was advised that there had been various events and officers had
made observations and sometimes no problems had been noted and
sometimes there had been mediation with the licence holder.

d. In response to further queries from Councillor Anderson, it was
acknowledged that this year there had been no notable concerns, and
that when issues had been raised they had been addressed. Officers
highlighted however that this was a residential area and that if activities
were permitted to later hours there could be an increase in noise
nuisance.

e. Councillor Anderson noted that issues with people congregating
outside had been after the premises was closed anyway and
guestioned whether an extension of hours by 30 or 60 minutes would
make a significant difference. Charlotte Palmer stated she thought that
residents would feel it would make a difference. Later at night there
was less traffic and other ambient noise, so any noise from the
premises would be more of a nuisance to residents. Concerns related
solely to the premises’ location.

f. In response to the Chair’s queries regarding inconsistency in
managing noise and people, it was reported that some observations
had found noise and music audible in the vicinity and others had not.
There was not nuisance every time observations were carried out.

g. In response to further queries regarding evidence, it was advised
that the officers’ notes on two occasions recorded issues of concern
and that any extension to hours at the venue would be inappropriate as
nuisance would be worse at a later hour.

h. Councillor Anderson asked about comparisons with similar premises
in similar locations. It was advised that as this specific premises was by
a roundabout it could affect residents in many directions. There had
been eight complaints received since 2013. This was certainly not one
of the worst premises that officers dealt with.

i. In response to the Chair’s general queries regarding applications for
TENSs, Charlotte Palmer advised that the Licensing Authority had no
objection to applications for TENs to see how extended hours worked
for businesses and their customers, if a business was considering
making an application to vary hours. They also gave officers the
opportunity to monitor the events. TENs were also submitted on a one-
off basis, for example for a party. She re-iterated that officers had three
working days only to make objections to a TEN from the day it was
submitted.

The statement by PC Pat Cahill, on behalf of Metropolitan Police
Service, including the following points:

a. He normally operated as an ASB officer, but was deputising at this
hearing for PC Martyn Fisher, Police Licensing Officer.

b. PC Fisher’s statement was included as Annex 04 in the report. His
main reasons for objection were that the location was in a mainly
residential area and he was aware there had been a number of noise

- 412 -



Page 127

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

nuisance complaints to the Council. If the application was granted,
there was a potential for noise issues, detrimental to local residents. If
later hours were permitted it would also very likely lead to increased
incidents of crime and disorder as customers would be able to
consume more alcohol. Although there would not be greatly extended
hours he felt that the negative impact on the local community would be
far too harmful and affect residents’ right to peace and quiet in their
own homes.

c. He had had personal dealings regarding anti-social behaviour in this
area. A camera had been funded from the Enfield Residents Priority
Fund for Bowes Ward at the request of the local Safer Neighbourhood
Team. The camera had been deployed at the junction of Wolves Lane
and Tottenhall Road in 2012 because there had been an issue with
youths congregating in local side streets and drug dealing. The camera
was now at the junction with Grenoble Gardens, to assist with flytipping
issues. Neither of these issues had any link to this pub, but the area
was very residential and if people were observed hanging round on
street corners, particularly at later hours and after consumption of
alcohol, residents would complain.

d. He imagined that customers leaving this venue would have to walk
up to Green Lanes to get a cab, and would therefore walk along
residential streets, which would be annoying for the residents.

e. He noted that a lot of local people had also expressed support for
the application, but questioned whether they would have a change of
mind if there was disturbance from noise and music at night.

PC Cabhill responded to questions as follows:

a. The Chair asked about evidence that later hours would very likely
lead to increased incidents of crime and disorder. It was advised that
PC Fisher had made his statement on the basis of his experience in the
area and issues experienced at a number of pubs in residential areas
where there had been problems at night. He had been working in the
borough for 12 years and always got complaints from residential areas.
b. The Chair asked for clarification of the Police’s position in relation to
TENSs at this venue. PC Cahill advised that the Police had looked at the
TENSs and events and there had been no problems, but PC Fisher was
considering the permanent longer hours in the application and felt that
there would be a negative impact on the local community.

c. The Chair asked if Police had any reason to believe that the
applicant was not properly promoting the licensing objectives. PC Cabhill
advised that from what he had read there was no problem with the
applicant or with the way the pub was being run. Charlotte Palmer
added that when the licence had been inspected that there had been
very few breaches, which had been complied with. There was some
concern that it had taken from June 2014 to get to this stage with
respect to the premises’ plan. A minor variation to the licence had been
submitted in 2013 following a meeting with the Licensing Authority and
the Police, after a series of assaults and disturbances relating to the

- 413 -



Page 128

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

pub. She confirmed that when things had been picked up by officers,
the licence holder had addressed them.

d. In response to the question from the licence holder whether she had
ever been refused a TEN, Charlotte Palmer highlighted conversations
between the parties when officers were minded to object and some
TENSs had been withdrawn and re-submitted with lesser hours.

e. In response to Councillor Anderson’s queries regarding PC Fisher’s
statement and any stronger evidence relating to this premises, PC
Cahill clarified that PC Fisher used to be ward officer in the area of
Palmers Green and Bowes for a number of years so knew the area
well. He would believe PC Fisher if he was saying that there could be
issues, but he had nothing to back it up. In response to further queries
by Councillor Anderson, he highlighted the final line of PC Fisher’'s
statement that he was happy with the current conditions on the licence.
f. The Chair queried why, if fears were evidence based, that a review
had not been called. Charlotte Palmer advised that the minor variation
was submitted at the Police’s request and a meeting of all the parties
further to a number of assaults. The applicant had agreed to additional
conditions on the licence. The report’s starting point was from the date
of that minor variation. Rather than a review, the licence holder had
been offered the opportunity to submit a minor variation.

g. In response to the Chair's question whether between November
2014 and February 2015 there had been any incidents of crime and
disorder when TENs had been granted, PC Cabhill confirmed there had
not.

The statement of Councillor Alan Sitkin, Bowes Ward Councillor,
including the following points:

a. He was speaking on behalf of Wolves Lane & District Residents’
Association.

b. He had personally used the pub and found it very pleasant, and he
had no anti-pub crusade.

c. His email of 14/01/15 set out his position. His representation related
to this pub’s location in a residential neighbourhood. If the pub was on
a commercial street his views would have been different. The
extensions to the licence here would materially change local residents’
living conditions.

d. He was attending the hearing to represent the opinion of the
majority of residents who opposed the extension of the licence.

e. He had received an email within the last couple of days from Chris
Joannou, Chair of Wolves Lane & District Residents’ Association,
raising two extra points:

(i) the number of complaints received by the Licensing Team were the
tip of the iceberg: more complaints could have been made but people
would not ring when they felt no notice was being taken;

(i) the residents’ association had carried out a door knocking exercise,
which had turned into a petition when it was realised that the equivalent
of 89% of residents opposed the licence extension. He added that

- 414 -



Page 129

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

many of the signatories of the applicant’s petition in support were too
far away to be affected. Mr Joannou stood by the appropriateness of
his petition.

f. There would seem no doubt that that vast majority of local residents
were opposed to the application due to intangible fears about public
nuisance. From the email he received, there were more complaints that
could have been made than were made. He had also communicated
with residents and they were opposed.

Councillor Alan Sitkin responded to questions as follows:

a. The Chair asked about the petitions against and in support of the
application, noting that the petition in support was larger, albeit with the
minor technical error, and that both petitions included addresses in
Tottenhall Road, Wolves Lane and Wilde Place. Councillor Sitkin
accepted that the LSC were in a difficult position in making a decision,
but re-iterated that he had been told those residents in opposition were
geographically closer, and the opponents had been more vociferous.

b. The Chair referred to the withdrawal of an objection from Mr
Perdikos and his reversion to a position of support for the reason that
he had felt misled by the residents’ association representative; and
guestioned whether there may be a degree of vexation. Councillor
Sitkin advised that Chris Joannou had affirmed that insinuations that
residents were misled by the residents’ association were absolutely
false.

c. Councillor Anderson questioned why, if there was such a vociferous
campaign in opposition, that fewer had signed the petition against than
had signed the petition in support. Councillor Sitkin took the point that
numbers may be fairly even and that the number of opponents may not
be large, but they were vocal and were extremely angry. All three
Bowes ward councillors had been contacted by objectors.

d. The Chair questioned why the residents’ association
representatives, beyond submitting the petition, had not made a
specific representation in their own right or attended this hearing.
Councillor Sitkin highlighted the supplementary email from Chris
Joannou on page 48, but acknowledged that none of the 25 valid
names had made a representation as such. He advised that in
discussions Mr Joannou had complained he had not had enough notice
of the hearing, though the Chair remarked that his email to the
Licensing Team was dated 01/03/15, over a month ago. Councillor
Sitkin advised that he was choosing not to repeat other comments
made in respect of the premises, but would say that residents predicted
that the applicant would not comply with licensing conditions as there
had been previous breaches and 2.5 years ago the pub had been
changed without permission, to include a kebab take away facility.

e. In response to the Chair’'s further queries about the possibility that
some objectors had displayed a degree of vexation in their objections,
Councillor Sitkin stated that he could not answer that, but he advised

- 415 -



Page 130

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

that Mr Joannou lived extremely locally to the premises and had
experienced people out on the pavement acting loudly.

f. In response to Councillor Vince’s queries regarding names and
addresses in the petitions, and that immediate neighbours appeared to
be against and in support, Councillor Sitkin acknowledged that he had
not read both petitions in detail.

g. Councillor Sitkin also acknowledged the further points made by
Councillor Anderson that a number of people signing the petition in
objection were members of the same household, which suggested
there had been difficulty gathering petition signatures: if there was such
high concern he would have expected to see considerable numbers
objecting.

The statement of Ms Leyla Hassan, the applicant, including the
following points:

a. She was speaking on behalf of herself and Mr Mehmet Ali Arslan:
they had taken over the pub in November 2011. At that time, the pub
had been used extensively by those buying, selling and smoking drugs.
She had barred around 80% of the previous customers, which meant
for the first six months the business had been very quiet, but she had
wanted to make it into a family pub.

b. She had doubled the number of CCTV cameras in the pub from
eight to 16 to eliminate blind spots, and installed a 60” monitor.

c. New customers had started being attracted. As more females were
visiting the pub, the premises had been altered to increase the number
of women’s toilets and make it more family friendly.

d. Their builder had advised that permission was not needed to move
the kitchen, but when the Council made her aware that it was
necessary, she had submitted the application.

e. There had been some confusion around whether a variation or new
premises licence was required, and she had to revise her application to
put mistakes right.

f. The main concerns related to people on the pavement outside the
pub, which was used as a smoking area. Alcohol was not allowed
outside, but people would hang around and non-customers would also
use the benches. At her suggestion, all benches and tables were taken
inside every night. Within this application, it was offered to move the
smoking area to the pub garden rather than in front of the pub. That
would stop noise nuisance for residents.

g. There was also a bus stop for the W4 bus directly outside, so there
would frequently be people waiting for a bus, and they would talk
amongst themselves and interact with pub customers and may use pub
chairs before 11pm.

h. Officers had mentioned noise made by customers waiting outside
for taxis, so a free phone had been installed in the premises for
customers to use to request a minicab and so they would stay inside
the pub.

- 416 -



Page 131

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

i. She had spoken to Chris Joannou when she first moved in to the pub
and asked if they could be invited to a residents’ association meeting.
They had now been there 3.5 years and had still not received that
invitation.

j- She had visited the pub’s immediate neighbours and provided them
with the telephone number of the pub and her own mobile number so
they could make contact directly if any problems arose. One resident
often rang if there was a car parked inconsiderately and she would
check if the owner was in the pub and if so ask them to move it. She
considered she had a very good relationship with her neighbours.

k. Five of the people who had signed the petition against the
application had signed her petition in support as well. The feedback she
had received when gathering petition signatures was that people had
felt misled by residents’ association representatives and it had been
suggested to them that the pub wanted to open much longer hours and
play music all hours.

I. At the moment the pub was licensed to open until 00:00. However,
on Monday they closed at 22:30. When there was no demand the pub
did not stay open, and if the application was granted, the pub would not
be kept open for all the permitted hours for the sake of it, or music
played to maximum hours.

m. She complied with officers’ advice to check noise levels by standing
and listening from appropriate places outside. She asked DJs to turn
down the volume when the noise was too loud.

Ms Leyla Hassan responded to questions as follows:

a. Councillor Anderson asked about the reasons for multiple
submissions for TENs. Leyla Hassan advised that the reason was that
she was due to go on holiday, but had a number of events coming up in
November and December including a bonfire night celebration and an
anniversary party. When she had applied for TENs for events until 3am
she had been made aware that the Council had concerns about issuing
them and PC Fisher rang her to say he would object, and so she
followed suggestions to reduce the TEN applications until 2am.

b. In response to Councillor Anderson’s queries regarding the petition
organised in support of the application, Leyla Hassan advised that the
incorrect time printed was a genuine mistake. No-one had
subsequently told her they felt they had signed under false pretence.
She confirmed she had collected the signatures in March. The petition
in opposition had been carried out in December / January, before this
application had been submitted.

c. Councillor Vince asked for the reasons why extended hours were
needed. It was advised that currently at 11pm the music was reduced
to background level. Then one by one customers started leaving and
moving on to other pubs by cab as they did not want to stop drinking or
finish their night at that point. They mainly moved on to The Fox, which
was open until 02:30. Her customers had been asking for later opening

- 417 -



Page 132

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

hours to 1am and music until 12am at The Bird in Hand. Most of the
customers were local residents, living within walking distance.

d. In response to Councillor Vince’s query whether anyone was
resident at the premises, Leyla Hassan advised that her business
partner lived there, and that she stayed a couple of nights per week.
She reiterated that chairs and tables were brought in at 11pm and that
access to the garden was locked at that time.

e. The Chair asked about additional steps which could be taken to
mitigate against the possibility of public nuisance and increased crime
and disorder. Leyla Hassan advised that noise had been reduced by
installing the free phone for minicabs, which stopped people going
outside and phoning, and by moving the smoking area into the garden.
The garden area backed onto the premises and was not exposed to
residential addresses.

f. In response to the Chair querying the marginal extra hours and
whether seeking them was worth aggravating local residents, Leyla
Hassan stated that this was her business and her living. Businesses
had to give customers what they wanted. The pub had to have food, an
area for children and a beautiful garden. The application was not just
about making more money. If people went out for a longer evening they
would drink more slowly and spread their drinking over the evening, but
not leave to go somewhere else. She considered herself and her
partner to be responsible licence holders. They had actioned everything
that officers had suggested. If responsible authorities said they needed
to do more they would not have a problem with it. The Principal
Licensing Officer advised that the applicant had offered some further
conditions, but that the responsible authorities had no objections to
current conditions set out in Annex 07. By condition, the outdoor tables
and chairs should be removed at 00:00, but the licence holder was
happy to bring them in at 11pm. The Chair confirmed that the debate
would focus on the application to extend licensing hours.

g. In response to Charlotte Palmer’s query regarding the outdoor
tables and chairs, Leyla Hassan confirmed that they would still be
brought in at 11pm if the application should be granted in full.

h. In response to Charlotte Palmer’s query regarding children on the
premises, it was advised that children had to have an adult with them at
all times: if they were not with an adult they were not allowed in. At 9pm
they made parents take children home unless they were in the
restaurant and eating dinner, and this would not change if the
application was granted.

i. It was clarified via the Chair that all parties would be satisfied for
additional conditions volunteered by the applicant to be included on the
licence.

j- In response to Charlotte Palmer’s question regarding intentions for
outdoor music, it was advised that in summer only they had piped
music outdoors, which was constantly monitored. They had had live
music in the garden twice, on bank holidays for barbeques held during
the daytime, and it was included on the application for such cases.

- 418 -



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 133

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

k. Charlotte Palmer highlighted the error in times for recorded music
given on the petition of support and asked if the applicant wished to
reduce the application in line with that. Leyla Hassan confirmed she
would prefer to keep the hours as written in the application.

I. In response to further queries from the Chair regarding the hours
sought, it was confirmed that the weekend licensed hours and music
were the most important from the business perspective. In the week,
the pub did not always use their maximum permitted hours and would
not fight as strongly for the weekday extended hours.

The closing statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer,
including the following points:

a. The Licensing Sub-Committee must take such steps as considered
appropriate for promotion of the licensing objectives.

b. Relevant Home Office Guidance and the Council’s licensing policy
were highlighted for Members’ attention.

The closing statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement
Officer, including the following points:

a. Officers’ notes stated on more than one occasion that later opening
hours at this premises would be likely to cause nuisance to residents.
b. Given that this was a highly residential area, the Licensing Authority
still objected to the application and recommended that the hours
granted were the same as those on the current licence.

The closing statement of PC Pat Cahill, on behalf of Metropolitan
Police Service, reiterating support of the Licensing Authority’s position.

Councillor Sitkin had confirmed he had no more to add to his
representation.

The closing statement of Ms Leyla Hassan, on behalf of the applicant,
including the following points:

a. She had always complied with advice given by the Licensing
Authority and the Police, and she did not want to upset local residents.
b. For clarity, the Police had been called in respect of the premises on
only four occasions. Once the pub had been broken into and a fruit
machine raided. One issue had arisen at a St Patricks Day celebration
when drinkers were mucking about. She had called for Police
assistance once after the fire alarm went off and the pub was
evacuated but had difficulty dispersing people as a bus arrived at the
same time and a number of football fans returning from a match got off
and hung around. The fourth occasion related to a suspected theft of a
mobile phone from a teacher in the pub with a group on the last day of
term: she later came back to say that one of her colleagues had picked
it up by mistake. There was not much crime in this pub.

RESOLVED that

- 419 -



Page 134

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local
Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Act.

The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting
reconvened in public.

The Chairman made the following statement:

“Having carefully considered all the written representations and listened
attentively to the oral submissions throughout the course of the
hearing, the Licensing Sub—Committee (LSC) concluded that the
Applicant for The Bird In Hand demonstrated to full satisfaction that it
had been and will continue to take all appropriate steps for the full
promotion of the licensing objectives, and that the LSC resolved to
grant the application in full.

The LSC was mindful of the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing
policy statement and statutory guidance in respect of premises located
in or immediately adjacent to residential areas, and the impact that
even the relatively modest increase in the hours sought for licensable
activities could have in terms, primarily on public nuisance, but also the
potential for crime and disorder. The LSC was confident that the
premises licence holder had been pro-active in her approach to
responsible operation of the previous licence, evolving policies,
procedures, and simple operational actions over almost four years at
these premises (specific use of the garden for smoking space, removal
of benches from the front of the pub at the historic terminal hour,
installing a Freephone taxi call service, being some of the examples),
working co-operatively with the Police (and PC Martyn Fisher in
particular) and Licensing Authorities, responding immediately and
sensibly when particular issues of noise nuisance and limited incidents
when the Police attended the premises or were called by the premises
licence holder. The LSC heard from the premises licence holder that
these limited incidents were not of a criminal nature. The LSC also
noted that the premises licence holder wasl/is consistently seeking
dialogue and an open relationship with the local Residents Association,
although such approaches had been consistently spurned, according to
the premises licence holder.

The LSC was also persuaded by the premises licence holder that,
whilst earnest in the seeking of no more than one extra hour per night
of various licensable activities throughout the week, she would take a
pragmatic approach to managing any new licence and would not

- 420 -



Page 135

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

necessarily keep the premises open to the full terminal hour every night
— thereby mitigating against the potential for increased disturbance of
any kind, and taking steps to promote the licensing objectives.

By contrast, the LSC considered that the objections made by the
Licensing Authority, the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) and some
local residents by way of 25 interested parties, represented at the
hearing by one of the three Ward Councillors, were not sufficiently
compelling or persuasive to refuse the extended hours to this new
application. Indeed, the LSC was of the view that rather than being
evidence based, most of the written representation, and much of the
oral submissions, were based on supposition, conjecture, and
speculation. The LSC heard amorphous words such as “very likely”, I

feel that”, “we believe that”, “might”, “negative effects that this often
leads to” — which diminished the arguments being advanced.

The LSC was told by the Licensing Authority that there had been an
inconsistency in managing the level of noise, the volume of music, and
managing people gathering outside the premises. However this was
not reflected within the evidence before the LSC which detailed that the
premises licence holder acted swiftly and appropriately by way of
response when such episodes occurred — on some occasions
responding to direct phone calls from local residents and sometimes
calling the police herself if the concern was of sufficient need and could
not otherwise be contained.

Additionally, it was the LSC’s opinion that submissions from the MPS
not only lacked statistical and supportive evidence, but were
inconsistent and contradictory.

PC Fisher wrote that the potential for noise nuisance arising from “only
one hour above” current times would be detrimental; and also “that the
later hours would also very likely lead to increased incidents of crime
and disorder”. And yet the LSC noted that at numerous times over the
past year, the MPS did not raise objections to temporary event notices
for activities lasting until 02:00 (or even 03:30 on three occasions) —
where the potential, by the logic of his argument, would perhaps have
been even greater. However, we heard no evidence worthy of note that
those events gave rise to significant noise or criminal disorder, or that
the licensing objectives were in any way compromised or undermined.

By the very nature of the location of these premises, being within very
close proximity to residential properties, the LSC applied great weight
to the opinions of local residents — some of whom were represented at
the hearing by Councillor Sitkin; himself an objector in writing in his
own right. He told the LSC that he was the mouthpiece for the 26
remaining parties from the petition objecting to the application, and in
particular Mr Chris Joannou from the Wolves Lane and District

- 421 -



Page 136

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

Residents Association (WLDRA). The LSC was asked to believe that
these objectors were those who lived in closest proximity to the
premises and likely to be most affected.

However, in the bundle of written evidence, the LSC also had sight of a
parallel petition from another group of residents in support of the
application — far greater in number than the interested parties who had
objected — a close reading of which making it clear that much of the
support came from the very same streets, some of whose addresses
were even closer to the premises. Under questioning from one of the
LSC, Councillor Sitkin conceded that he had not read or analysed the
respective petitions in detail, nor spotted that objectors and supporters
were often next door neighbours.

The LSC also noted the written representation provided by an
interested party, Mr Perdikos of 147 Tottenhall Road in which not only
did he withdraw his initial objection to the application for what he had
believed was a significantly greater extension of hours than that now
being sought, but explicitly said the current application is something to
which he was content to give his full support.

The LSC took into account the written statement from Mr Joannou
through an email dated 1 March 2015 — in which he asserts that a
survey carried out to ascertain the views of the local community
“reveals that 91% of those that were contacted are strongly opposed to
the grant of a Premises Licence that extends the hours for playing
music and the supply of alcohol ...” The LSC considered that it
conveyed a very specific view of Mr Joannou speaking on behalf of
WLDRA and that there was no formulated basis for this statistic.

Moreover, as part of his oral evidence, Councillor Sitkin — voluntarily
and without prompting by questions — began to recount additional
irrelevant hearsay information, concerning planning issues, he had
been given by Mr Joannou. The LSC disregarded that information in its
consideration and decision.

The only area of contention in this case was a marginal extension of
hours, but the LSC acknowledged that even such relatively small
changes have significance for the local community in that this increase
in hours may have an impact on the promotion of the licensing
objectives, and so residents’ views are paramount in such matters.

However, it is the role of any Licensing Sub-Committee to take a
balanced view of the respective arguments, and to make a decision on
the weight of evidence. The LSC needs to have confidence in the
ability of a premises licence holder such that the management and
operation of the licence is done effectively, efficiently, and with
responsibility. Above all, it is incumbent on the premises licence holder

- 422 -



Page 137

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 15.4.2015

to ensure that the licensing objectives are being properly promoted and
that all reasonable steps, guided by workable and enforceable
conditions, are being taken so to do.

This LSC considered that the new application from the premises
licence holder for The Bird In Hand was robust, and that the
representations from all objecting parties were lacking in evidence and
not sufficiently well made to persuade it to arrive at any other decision
than that it would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives to grant the application in full.

The LSC also anticipates that B. Lads Limited will surrender the
previous licence LN/200502145 at the earliest opportunity, not least
because the plans attached to it are out of date and if would have been
inoperable.

Should the worst fears of local residents, local representatives, or any
of the Responsible Authorities be confirmed, the opportunity to call for
a review of the licence is built into the Licensing Act process for that
very reason.”

The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved to grant the licence in full as
follows:
(1) Hours the premises are open to the public : Sunday to Thursday
10:00 to 00:30 and on Friday and Saturday from 10:00 to 01:30.
(i) Supply of alcohol (on and off supplies) : Sunday to Thursday
10:00 to 00:00 and on Friday and Saturday from 10:00 to 01:00.
(i)  Live music :
(Indoors) Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 23:30 and on Friday and
Saturday 10:00 to 00:00.
(Outdoors) Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 21:00
(iv)  Recorded music:
(Indoors) Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 00:00 and on Friday and
Saturday 10:00 to 00:30.
(Outdoors) Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 21:00
(v) Performance of dance : Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 23:30 and
on Friday and Saturday 10:00 to 00:30
(vi)  Late night refreshment : Sunday to Thursday 23:00 to 00:00 and
on Friday and Saturday 23:00 to 01:00
(vii)  Indoor sporting events : Monday to Sunday 10:00 to 00:00.

Conditions (in accordance with Annex 07 to the report)

Conditions 1 to 21, which were modified and enhanced in part and
agreed by responsible authorities and the applicant.

- 423 -



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 THE WINCHMORE, 235 WINCHMORE HILL ROAD, LONDON, N21 1QA  (REPORT NO. 237)
	4 HERTFORD FOOD CENTRE, 236 HERTFORD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 5BL  (REPORT NO. 238)
	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 15 APRIL 2015

